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Acknowledgement to Traditional Owners

The Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council respectfully acknowledges the Wakka Wakka peoples who are the
traditional owners of the land on which we are based., and we pay our respects to our Elders past and
present. We also wish to acknowledge the historical peoples who were sent here and made Cherbourg
their home. With many tribes in our one Community, we strive to combine all of our services and skills
committed to reducing all inequalities between Indigenous and non-Indigenous Communities.
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The history of Cherbourg is one of Aboriginal people being forcibly removed and brought from all over
Queensland and Northern New South Wales to a newly formed government reserve.

Under the Aborigines Protection Act of 1897 the settlement then called Barambah, was gazetted and
established in 1904.

In 1932, the name Barambah was then changed to Cherbourg due to a nearby property called “Barambah
Station” which caused confusion in mail delivery.
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INTRODUCTION

This document is presented to display the work Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has done to ensure its
residents live the best possible life.

It provides an account of the organisation’s performance, activities and other information for the
financial year of 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020.

The information provided ensures Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council is accountable for all its workings
and outlines how it operates so people better understand what we are trying to achieve. It will
demonstrate Council’s challenges, culture, purpose and plans for the future.

It is hoped the document will inspire others to become agents of change and partner with Cherbourg
Aboriginal Shire Council in our effort to strengthen our existing programmes and benefit our residents.

Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council is committed to serving our community and aims to provide services
that empower our people.

Copies of this annual report can be obtained by phoning the council on (07) 4168 1866.
Those wishing to link with the council or provide feedback can also email ceo@cherbourg.qld.gov.au or
go to the website of http://www.cherbourg.qld.gov.au/
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OUR TOWN, OUR SHIRE,
OUR AREA

Cherbourg sits 267km west of Brisbane and is surrounded by the beautiful South Burnett region.
Wineries and the Bjelke-Petersen dam are just minutes away. The vineyards are noted for their scenery,
great food and award winning vintages. The dam is restocked regularly and holds one of Australia’s
biggest fishing carnivals on an annual basis.

Cherbourg itself, hosts the national, award-winning Ration Shed Museum. This gives visitors an insight
into how Cherbourg was formed as a Mission in 1904 and a stronger understanding of Australia’s
settlement through its tours, photos, movies and information. The nearby Bert Button Lookout provides
views through the Wondai State Forest onto Bjelke-Petersen Dam.

Cherbourg is now home to 1292 people and the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council controls an area of
31.7km2. The average daily temperature ranges from 12.7°C to 26.3 °C and its average yearly rainfall is
809 mm.
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MAYOR & CEO'S MESSAGE

Firstly. on behalf of the newly elected Council and the entire
management team we would like to thank the previous
Council and the entire workforce for their contribution to
making Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council and community
better place. | believe we have vision for a well-being,
progressive and contributing Cherbourg.

The 2019-20 year has been interesting and challenging year
with many milestones and projects. We have three new
councillors, New Chief Executive Officer and two new senior
managers in our organisation. New Council has witnessed a caring and alert community prepared to
make the hard decisions to ensure we keep safe from COVID 79.

We would particularly like to thank our local disaster management group members for their

Vigilance in helping our community through the COVID 19 epidemic which has impacted the whole
world and continues to do so... thank you to all our Queensland Health staff, Australian Defence Services
personnel and the local Queensland Police Service personnel.

We will continue implement our vision:
The Cherbourg Council in partnership with the community will strive to:

1. Provide a clean, safe and healthy community. We will work to improve the health and well-
being of our people

2. Consistently empower the community to become self reliant/independent

3. Empower/encourage youth to determine their future through self respect, education, training,
cultural and traditional values

4. Providing a caring, respectful and safe environment for our elders.

Cherbourg is a great place to live but much more can be done to improve on this and make it an even
better place to live. The introduction of Councils Corporate Plan and Operational Plan should give us as
a Community, a guide to the future for the betterment of our Community. To make Cherbourg a better
place will require the Community to work together. We as residents of this Community need to do our
part to ensure that Cherbourg is a great place for our children to grow up in, our elders to enjoy their
retirement and for all to feel safe.

Again, | would like to acknowledge he hard work of council executive management team, the staff and
all state and Australian government departments who have assisted us in our efforts for council and

community.

Elvis Sandow , Mayor
Chatur Zala, Chief Executive Officer
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MAYOR ELVIE SANDOW
2020 First Female Mayor of CASC
2016 Deputy Mayor

2000 Councillor

I've spent all my life in Cherbourg and was raised by my Grandmother. | have
8 brothers (I am the eldest and only girl) in our family of 8. Education - | was a
student at Cherbourg State School (years 1-7) and Murgon State High School
(years 8-12). | have 3 Children Bobbie, Curtis and Trent, and have 6 beautiful

grandchildren.

* Employed as CASC Payroll Officer for 21 years

* President — Gundoo Daycare Early Childhool Learning Centre (15 yrs)
¢ Executive Officer — Gundoo Daycare Early Childhood Learning Centre (5 yrs)
* Member — QATSIETAC- Qld ATSI Education & Training Advisory Committee

This term my goals are to:

* Provide good leadership, build better partnerships in Education, Health & Wellbeing, Housing, for better

outcomes for our community and future generations.
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DEPUTY MAYOR TOM LANGTON
* 2016 Councillor (Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council)

* 2020 Deputy Mayor (Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council)

I was born and raised in Cherbourg and worked in for a while in Brishane.
| was educated at the Cherbourg State School from years 1-7. Then on to
Murgon High for years 8-12. | come from a large family of 6 brothers and

7 sisters. | have 7 children — 4 sons and 3 daughters.

My employment history is varied:
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e Cemetery Gang — Cherbourg Council * Community Police - Cherbourg
® Lab Assistant - Murgon High ® Plumber — Cherbourg Council
* Taxation Office — Brishane * Building Supervisor — Cherbourg Council

* Men's Group — Cherbourg Justice Group * Plumber — Selwood Constructions

My Interests are:

* Fishing * Rugby League
* Cricket * Golf
e Teaching others * My children’s education

This Term My Goals Are:

* Continue what we started last term

* Fight for better outcomes for our community

* Achieve better health services for our community
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FRED COBBO - COUNCILLOR
2020 First Term Councillor

I've spent the majority of my life moving between Hervey Bay and Cherbourg.
It was when | returned Cherbourg that | took education serious and completed
my High School education at the nearby Murgon State High School. | became
the first in my family to complete Year 12.

After completing school | worked in the Local Government sector, by taking up
employment with the former Hervey Bay City Council.

| had an opportunity to become a tradesperson and obtained an apprenticeship with the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire
Council. After 10 years of service and gaining my electrical qualifications, | ventured into my other love. EDUCATION

For over past 25 years | have been employed in the education section on many levels from Policy making, working in
Primary, Secondary, vocational & University education.

During these year | completed a university degree in Bachelor of Applied Science, Majoring in Community
Development Management & Leadership with Curtin University Perth WA, becoming the second member of my
family to complete university studies.

My goals this term are to:

* Provide good honest and transparent leadership

* Develop a better relationship with community

* Provide Better housing

* Build a partnership with all Government Departments both State and Federal
* Create job opportunities for all
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LEIGHTON COSTELLO - COUNCILLOR
2020 1st Term Councillor

| am a family man and have 5 children (3 Girls & 2 Boys) with my partner
Kaysee. I've lived in Brisbane and Cherbourg. My education commenced at
St Joseph’s Murgon (years 1-7) and continued atMurgon High School
(years 8-12).

My employment has been varied over the years:
* Youth Worker - CTC
* CASC Accounts Assistant - CASC

* Male Sexual Health Worker - Brisbane Medical Centre e Cultural Practice Advisor - Child Safety
* Apprentice Carpenter - CASC ¢ Teacher Aide/Bus Driver - Silver Lining
¢ Yardsman/Handyman - Cherbourg State School * Mines - Qld

Hobbies Personal/Professional Interests:
* Rughy League ¢ Education/Youth
e Touch Football e Golf

Visions/Aspirations for the Cherbourg Community are:
* To be an advocate for Youth/Men in the Community
¢ Improve Health/Education

e Employment
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BRONWYN MURRAY- COUNCILLOR

Cr. Murray comes from a strong independent family of leaders, mentors,
worker’s and guides who have embedded learning seeds in her, since
childhood. Born and raised in Cherbourg and is a descendant from the

Wakka Wakka, Takalaka and Gungalu tribes. She completed year 12 at Murgon
State High school and went on to further studies, in order to possess graduate
qualifications from 3 universities and other RTO’s, including Cherbourg’s local
Nurunderi TAFE College.

Cr. Murray is currently in the process of becoming a small business owner,
previously sat on numerous boards and committees.

Her forte is working in the Mental Health and Social Welfare industries, as well as supporting youth through
education and sports.

There are a few agenda items for her as a Councillor, and they are to:

* Stay on top of Council priorities

* Ensure transparency

* Ensure accountability

* Create Pathways

* Consult and engage with Government agencies to work on better solutions

* Lobby Government for what’s in our best interest

* Engage with community to change mindsets

* Stamp out boredom by creating opportunities for all residents; in order to be involved in positive activities
* Continue to work with people to achieve positive outcomes

* Address priority concerns

* Empower and encourage agencies to build stronger relationships and to work cohesively together to implement
needed programs from effective strategies

* Educate community and lead our people to have life victories and achieve successful community outcomes.

Her vision for Cherbourg is to work towards having a well-respected, close knit, clean, beautiful home town that'’s
healthy, sustainable and a multi-skilled community full of opportunities and positiveness.

Her passion and drive is education, due to being what she believes is the key to open the doors to opportunity, as
well as working with or for her people.

Cr. Murray stands strong from her husband Patrick, daughter Keturah, close family and friendships.
“They’re her Rock”
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COUNCILLORS' MISSION
STATEMENT & VISION

Mission Statement:
To develop the independence and uniqueness of our community whilst maintaining respect and integrity
in our culture and country for the future.

The Community Vision:
The Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council and Cherbourg community will strive to:

° Provide a clean, safe and healthy community. We will work to improve the health and wellbeing
of our people;

. Consistently encourage, lead and support the community to become self-reliant / independent;
o Assist youth to determine their future through self-respect, education, training, cultural and
traditional values;

° Provide a caring, respectful and safe environment to our elders.

Whilst respecting and upholding local traditional, cultural and (foundational, religious, spiritual, Christian)
values and beliefs we will strive to maintain our identity, our culture and respect for each other.
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PAY & MEETINGS

REMUNERATION TO COUNCILLORS
Section 186 (1) (a) (b) LGR 2012

Name Position Salary Superannuation |[Expenses Claimed [Facilities provided
Elvie Jean Sandow Re-elected Mayor $ 73876| % - % 2,037 | Mobile Phone
Tom Langton Re-elected Deputy Mayol $ 56,931 | $ -9 452 | Mobile Phone
Frederick Cobbo Incoming Councillor $ 122421 % -1% -
Leighton Costello Incoming Councillor | $ 12242 | § -1% 145
Bronwyn Murray Incoming Councillor $ 12242 % -1 % -
Arnold Murray Previously Sitting |Mayor $ 85612 | % -1 % 3,766
James Saltner Previously Sitting Councillor $ 42805 % -8 452
Shirley Law Previously Sitting Councillor $ 28565 % -1 8 452
Alana Purcell Previously Sitting Councillor $ 8119 | $ -1$ -
Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Councillors Attendance Record (2019-2020)
Ordinary Special Post Election Total Total
Name Council Council Meeting Meeting Meetings Meetings Attended
Meeting (Days Attended) (Days Attended) Eligible to Attend (Days Attended)
(Days
Attended)
9 0 ] 9 9
Mayor Arnold Murray
DeputyMayor Elvie Sandow 9 0 ! 9 13
Mayor 3 0 4
Cr Tom Langton ) 0 ! 9 13
Deputy Mayor Tom Langton 3 1] 4
9 0 0 ) 9
Cr James Saltner
0 0 0 0 0
Cr Alana Purcell
6 0 0 6 6
Cr Shirley Law
3 0 ! +4 4
Cr Fred Cobbo
3 0 1 + 4
Cr Leighton Costello
3 0 ! 4 4
Cr Bronwyn Murray
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COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS

Education: Gundoo Day Care, Cherbourg State School, Nurunderi TAFE.

Culture: UsMob 94.1 radio station, Wakka Wakka Dancers, Ration Shed Musuem; and Indigenous
Knowledge Centre;

Sport: Les Stewart Sports Complex, South Burnett PCYC, Cherbourg junior and senior football teams,
Girls's open netball, Cherbourg mens cricket team;

Retail: Cherbourg Retail Store;

Community: Jundah Women's Shelter; Ny Ku Byun Aged Care residential, Beemar Yumba Children’s
Shelter, Cherbourg Fire Brigade;

Health: Barambah Medical Centre; Community Health, Cherbourg Public Hospital; Rescue Helicopter
Service;

Law and order: Police Station, Barambah Local Justice Group, Murri Court;

Employment: Council, Selwood Construction; Sarina Russo, Max Employment, Cherbourg Farm,
Cherbourg Recycling Waste Management Plant, Cherbourg Joinery, Centrelink;

Government: Department of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships.
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CHERBOURG ABORIGINAL SHIRE COUNCIL - ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

COUNCIL

UL CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Greg Mashford (Consultant) e T
Chatur Zala

Trevor Blair {Administrator)

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY
Fileen Jacobs

ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT MANAGER
Sean Nicholson

COMMUNITY SERVICES
MANAGER
Edwina Stewart

OPERATIONS MANAGER

CORPORATE SERVICES MANAGER

Samuel Murray Darren Lonergan

Cemetery

Community Roundtable
Community Liaison
Disaster Management
IKC
Radio Station
Sport & Recreation

Asset Management
Audit
Tenancy Management
Creditors
Customer Service
Debtors

Financial Management

Building Upgrades
Building Maintenance
Enterprises
Farm Activities
Joinery
New Construction
Recycling (MRF & CRP)

Capital Projects

Environmental Health & Animal
Management

Essential Services
(Drainage, Storm water,
Waste Collections)

Fleet Management

Landfill

Grant Management

Human Resources Roads, Parks & Gardens

(Including Training & Development) Warehouse Operations

Information Technology Workshop
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COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT

TY SERVICES MANAGER
Edwina Stewart

Sport &

Community Support Radio Station
Services
including

Disaster Management

Community Services
Officer

Cleaners

Recreation

Indigenous
Knowledge Centre

Coordinator

Coordinator Lavina Dynevor

Michael Monk T
I
K i y Manager Sports &
Kaysee Miller Wawida Collins | I Vacant —5— Assistant Radio Rec. Officers
Lesley Purcell Martina Jacobs Station Coordinator .
tation Loordinator Daniel Georgetown

l
Vacant Jeffrey Dynevor
SCo:rd |JnamI: Broadcasters Jim Hawkins
ophia Jacobs
pl Arlene Langton Kaysee Miller

Harold Chapman
Joylene Seckold
Kimberley Barrett

Trainee/s

Shannon Keyes
Virginia Fisher

Sonny Weazel
Sphree Jacobs
School-Based Trainee
Traevonnah
Fisher
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CHERBOURG ABORIGINAL SHIRE COUNCIL - ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

CORPORATE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CORPORATE SERVICES MANAGER

SAMUEL MURRAY

Customer Service/

Reception & Post Office

m |lu“1an nesour(es +

Tenancy
Management

Kerri Watson

M o P e

Celeste Purcell

Noella Murray

Dol Ranabhat

Tessa Fisher

Marcia Carlo

Accountant

Accounts

Trainee

HR Advisor
Mark Celledoni

School-Based
Destiny Conlon
Skill Centred

Keisha Bone

Senior Housing
Officer

Antonia Jacobs

Housing Assistant/s
Chantelle Mackay

Clifton Bell

CHERBOURG ABORIGINAL SHIRE COUNCIL - ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY DELOPMENT MANAGER
SEAN NICHOLSON

Building
Department

Administration
Fiona Gadd

Economic &
Community
Development

Officer

Recycling

Material Recycling Facility & Container Refund Point Manager

Andrew Beckett

Building
Manager
Neil
Uebergang

Apprentice Glazier
Gene Barrett

lan Bird
Lindsay Cobbo
Preston Rewald

William Gormly

Cameron
Bond

Dead|

Z'asuaF

Donald
Anderson

Farm Supervisor
Bowman Button

Joinery Manager
Greg Tynan

MRF & CRP Supervisor - Damian Selby

L
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Eric Blair
Gordon Harrison

Jarrabah Davidson

Colin Ferguson
Kevin Curtis

CRP Cherbourg
Alexander Georgetown
Christopher Bond
Gordon Davidson

Raymond Skinner

www.cherbourg.qgld.gov.au

MRF
Aileen Blair
Andrew Beckett snr
Cyril Georgetown
Gordon Davidson
Joseph Sullivan
Percy Murray
Sonny Murray

Thomas Weazel

CRP Manager
Kingaroy
Christine Beresford

Danyon Mickelo
George Bone
Joe Sullivan

Les Collins

Rhys Cobbo




CHERBOURG ABORIGINAL SHIRE COUNCIL - ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT

OPERATIONS MANAGER

DARREN LONERGAN

m m En‘.‘ironrnental Health

Works Coordinator
Lindsay Bligh

Works, Parks

| Robert Nixon l Sharan AMW EHW s\%rra&e Elizabeth & Gardens Mechanic
Purcell Daniel Weazel Jackson O’Chin Aaron Rosewarne Matthew Bock

Justin Cobus
William Malone e Joseph Weazel Apprentice/s

Lance Hill -
Kerrod Burke Craig Renouf
Robert Chermside Lowana Leedie

William Weazel

& Plant
Operator/s

Charlie Bond

Les Wragge

Lyndon Hopkins

Shamus Cobbo

Annual Report 2020/21 15



ECONOMIC & COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

This year has been tough for business and projects but we continue to move forward in a positive way
delivering projects and work opportunities for the Cherbourg Community in the best way we can. We
have a new CEO and a new Council —the message is clear — deliver for Community.

Challenges

The COVID 19 Checkpoint and roadblocks severely disrupted all our business and construction programs
—good health is always the leading priority so our only option was to work with our business partners
and find workable solutions to keep people employed.

Consistent work attendance is a challenge for the recycling operations, we have contracts to meet and
they are not negotiable on timeframes and quality.

Regionally

Our department works closely with the Federal Government, State Government, and five surrounding
Local Governments to find grant funding and to liaise with other stakeholders on regional development
opportunities and to lead the way with waste and waste recovery in Queensland.

In Cherbourg

Projects
We have completed substantial work in support of the Ration shed complex with upgrade and new
buildings and continue to support them and the AIM Church with repairs and maintenance where we
can.
Roads — Main Cherbourg road to Murgon section — stabilised, widened, new surface

Carter St — cleaned undergrowth + re-sealed

Fisher St section — cleaned undergrowth, repaired potholes and sinking, re-sealed

Beattie St — cleaned undergrowth + re-sealed

Jerome St — repaired potholes and resealed

Bligh St — cleaned edges, repaired potholes — re-sealed
Radio Station — modernisation and re-fit
Main Council office —improved communication and data connectivity and connection to business sites
Sarina Russo building — major stabilisation works and some internal repairs
Junior Footy Ground developed and ready for the 2021 season —game day should be quicker now.

Recycling: we are very proud of our recycling and won awards again due to the hard work of the
managers, supervisors and staff running those sites — a big shout out to them.

Kingaroy Containers for Change Depot — expanded warehouse, introduced cages system, reviewed all
Workplace Health and safety practices + counted over 3 Million containers

Cherbourg Containers for Change — has now processed over 2 Million containers, team there is growing
with lots of new skills using computers, forklifts, front end loaders etc.

Cherbourg Processing —new equipment and machinery now allows us to process approx. 750,000
containers a week which are sold locally and internationally.

16 www.cherbourg.gld.gov.au



Farm

Our long serving manager left and that has allowed a local person to take on responsibility there and
while we have less cows now, they are not in the town disrupting life and our management practices
have improved. We continue to fight pastoral weeds such as parthenium which is a long-term challenge
hindering the growth of this business unit.

Building Program — making Cherbourg better each day

We continue to fix daily housing maintenance issues — we attended to over 2000 call outs in the last year.
More driveways, carports and sheds are being put into properties and this program will continue until all
properties are at that standard.

Most properties now should have a secure fence, safe pathways and laundry line access, reasonable
outside presentation, reasonable interior presentation, good foundation and structure and good quality
roofing and guttering, and wood heating. We are working with Qbuild to install fans into every house —
this program has been delayed but will roll out in the next few months.

New houses will be completed in late 2021 — two specialty disabled units for wheelchair bound people
will be part of this construction program.

Summary
We continue to welcome suggestions by the public through the correct channels for any town
improvement, and we look forward to a progressive and successful 2021.
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COMMUNITY SERVICES
PROGRAMMES

Under the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council Organisational Structure, the Community Services
Department is responsible for supporting the general health, wellbeing and safety of the community. The
programmes that are supported by the Cherbourg Council are:

Community Services Support;

Disaster Management;

Community Radio

Sport and Recreation; and

Winifred Fisher Indigenous Knowledge Centre (IKC).

g mEie

Community Services

Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council Interagency

Council holds an interagency meeting once a month (first Thursday of the month). In these meetings,
Community issues are discussed and the agencies take turns to explain what their organisation’s core
business is about and what upcoming events or problems they are having. It is a positive gathering with
no misguided statements and no-one laying blame on another. Together, we all try to come up with
solutions that will benefit the entire Community. This meeting commenced in 2013 with 10 people and
has grown to an attendance of 35. The aim now has changed from being transparency of agencies to
creating

smaller sub-groups with the same or similar core business aims and objectives in order to meet and work
together to plan, organise and set up programmes that will tackle issues.

Disaster Management

COVID-19 community education, awarness and support has been a primary focus, communicating

and ensuring all protocols and precautions are followed both in the workplace and home. Council are
working in partnership with Queensland Health and other key community services providers to keep our
community informed and connected in these uncertain times. Communication is key and we are utilising
all available tools at our disposal including our newly built website, social media and of course our local
Cherourg Radio service.

“Get Ready Cherbourg Day” event

This is an annual event with free food, giveaways and promotional gifts that get our families thinking
about how they can prepare themselves with kits and plans if a flood, major storm or fire happens.

Sport, Recreation and Health

Sports

Netball and Basketball are still running with strong engagment and participation

The boxing program in partnership with PCYC and CRAICCHS (which has started with a large number of
participants both male and female);

18 www.cherbourg.qld.gov.au



Recreation

Council continues to fund and participate in:

° After School Program (ASP) the usual activities — cricket, soccer, t-ball, bulrush and touch footy;
o A monthly partnership with Gundoo Day Care Centre running the Family Fun Day event. Council
will be supplying the sport equipment for ball games and Indigenous Games.

Health

Council has been successful in gaining Drought Support Funding for the following:

o Cherbourg Rodeo (for Mental Health Week) with the theme of: “Don’t be ashamed to ask for help”;
e 2 R-U-OK Days;

e The Cherbourg Men'’s Forum; and

e Pink Ladies Morning Tea to support women with breast cancer.

Winifred Fisher Indigenous Knowledge Centre (IKC)

In collaboration with Queensland University of Technology, the Winifred Fisher IKC has been given
funding to enhance its resources and equipment. The newly renovated Maternity and Child Welfare
Clinic building has been refurbished into an Indigenous library where you can access computers with

the internet, attend a range of workshops, borrow out local Indigenous books, rent out movies and
documentaries, access free driving lessons and use the interview rooms for meetings. It has become a
great resource for providing and holding information about our community, our Elders, our history and
our future. The outside area of the building has also been enhanced with the creation of a healing garden
and play area for children.

~. N ) @ A
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-
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CORPORATE SERVICES
PROGRAMMES

There were many highlights for the Corporate Services in the financial year of 2015-2016. Many of the
highlights reflected our collaboration with other corporations to broaden Cherbourg’s network and
progression into independence. What we have achieved is:

1 Successfully completed the Financial Audit and Financial Report within the designated time-
frame;

2. Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has continued investing funds with Queensland Treasury
Corporation (which allows for protection of Cherbourg’s funds)

3. Achieved an interest income of $78,061 to Council, allowing for opportunities to further develop
our financial management;

4, Successfully received funds through the Department of Local Government Grants and Subsidies
Program for our Indigenous Knowledge Centre building;

5. Working on the Council’s Code of Conduct in conjunction with QUT University students; and

6. Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has entered the three years agreement with Fourier to

manage the Council’s IT on cloud system.

We will continue to strive for improvement and development in our Corporate Services Program by
collaborating and networking with corporations that can assist with making Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire
independent and self-efficient.

20 www.cherbourg.qld.gov.au



COMMUNITY NEWS

NEW MAYOR MAKES HISTORY

History was made when the community elected our first female
mayor, Elvie Sandow. ‘I was raised by my two grandmothers and
they were strong women,” Mayor Sandow said.

‘So | dedicate this to them, my late grandmothers. | am strong
because of them!

Mayor Sandow brings to the job much experience in Cherbourg
Aboriginal Shire Council procedures having worked for the council
from 1993 to 2014. ‘“Twenty one years as payroll officer so | actually

know how the office runs. So that’s a plus for me, she said.

While working for the council, she was elected as a shire councilor in 2000 but due to new legislation couldn’t do
both so she resigned as the payroll officer. She took up a position in the Gundoo Early Childhood Centre where she
ended up as Chief Executive Officer.

Now that she’s mayor, Mayor Sandow said she can’t continue at the centre.

‘No, | will need to resign because | know I've got my hands full. You’ve got to understand being a Mayor in an Abori-
ginal community is a full time job, because we can’t run away, cause they know where | live, she said with laughter.
Mayor Sandow also brings leadership abilities to the job. In the previous council term, she served as Deputy Mayor.
‘I am here because the people in the community put me here and they put me here for a reason; they want honest
answers and good leadership.

‘Our main priority is to get employment back into our community for our local people!

She said that community wellbeing and mental health is essential and that people need to get back to interacting
with each other face to face.

Every leader needs vision and Mayor Sandow’s is about the future of the community.

‘My passion is early childhood education, because you're laying the foundation for these children and you've got to
understand children are our future, to make a difference in their lives, that’s where you got to start,” she said.
‘[Young people] need to understand education is important, getting out there doing traineeships. But its’ getting
out there and wanting to do it and having support from family as well.

A mayor’s responsibility is great but Mayor Sandow is not daunted by her new job.

‘It's a long road but | say bring it on because I'm a community person. | know what we need here and you know,
just being a community person, people know they can come and talk to me’
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TIMELY NEW LANDMARK FOR COMMUNITY

A new landmark is soon to appear in Cherbourg, a town clock, part of Councils long term town planning for beautifi-
cation projects, updates, and upgrade.

Sharing a vision to make Cherbourg a better place, CEO Zala told Cherbourg Radio announcer Kimberly Barrett, he
originally came up with the idea noting a clock can be found in most towns pride of place as a landmark community
can be proud of. On taking the idea to council the CEOs idea was endorsed soon to take pride of place on the first

roundabout as you enter Cherbourg.

Neil Uebergang, Building Manager for Cherbourg Council engaged an architect to draw up the designs to suit
specifications, a highly recommended Toowoomba clock maker was then engaged for the build. The actual clock is
circular, about a meter across and will be set into square shaped block work, the design will look to celebrate and
commemorate the history of our community.

CEO Zala said, with the help of The Ration Shed Museum, plaques were to be made to go onto the clock structure
that will recognise the names of the many tribes brought to Barambah Mission in years gone by. The project has
been supported with funding from Works For Queensland.

NEIGHBOURING COUNCILS MEET IN CHERBOURG

Cherbourg Council were honoured recently to host a meeting of “Wide Bay Burnett Region Of Councils” (WWBROC)
the first time the organisation has held an official meeting in our community. In August six mayors and their depu-
ties from Cherbourg Gympie, Bundaberg, Fraser Coast, North Burnett and South Burnett Councils met in Cherbourg.
The local government councillors attended a regional roads meeting, visited the Cherbourg Ration Shed Museum,
The Material Recycling Facility before heading to the Nurunderi Tafe for the official WWBROC meeting.
Mayor Elvie Sandow said it was an “eye opener” for her guests who learned more about our community, facilities,
projects and future plans.
Councillors were delighted to be in Cherbourg, Mayor Sandow says she is looking forward to building and expan-
ding partnerships with our neighbouring councils.
WBBROC chair, Bundaberg Mayor Jack Dempsey, said the Cherbourg Council had some really great projects, espe-
cially for the youth of the community. “We want to highlight Cherbourg as such an important area for Wide Bay,” he
said. “We see a lot of funds going further north. We’re saying, you've
got Cherbourg so close to millions of people in south-east Queensland
so if you put some funding into here, the rest of Queensland could
come and get a really magnificent cultural experience. : ¢ SR e 3
" L g
Mayor Dempsey said WBBROC was there to help to Cherbourg. | ¥ : :
“We want the young people here to have a bigger, brighter future,”
he said.
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‘CHAMPION’ LEAVES WITH A LONG LIST

Cherbourg’s “Ministerial Champion” Dr Anthony Lynham visited
the community in late July ... and left with a big wish list to take
back with him to the State Government. Dr Lynham met with
Mayor Elvie Sandow, Deputy Mayor Tom Langton, CEO Chatur Zala
and senijor Council staff at the Council Chambers. He makes
quarterly visits to Cherbourg as part of his State Government role
as “Ministerial Champion” for the town, however, the visiting
schedule was disrupted by COVID-19 and this was his first visit
back since visiting restrictions ended.

Top of the discussion list was the presentation of a plan for a new Council Chambers to replace the current building.
Dr Lynham was told the current building was totally inadequate: there is not enough room or storage space, it is
sinking on one side, and is moving.

Mr Zala presented plans for a new building, an idea first raised in 2008 to create a new community hub in the main
street.

This new building could be constructed in stages.

Dr Lynham was petitioned to lobby on behalf of the project, and he seemed impressed.

“You can’t help but be impressed by the design, how the building looks, how it’s going to function and how pragma-
tic this whole thing is for the community of Cherbourg,” Dr Lynham said.

“| can see nothing better than to come back one day and have that building finished.

“It looks fantastic and it’s structured so well that it can be (built) in different stages. So every stage is a modest step
forward to completion. It’s been well thought out.

“My role is to go back to Brisbane and take that concept design report and market (it) as much as | can with my
colleagues and present this to government, to make sure the Mayor’s case and the community’s case is well-heard
regarding this.”

Other issues raised with Dr Lynham during the visit included:

- Updates on the recycling plant, funding for the cemetery, skate park and fencing; and solar panels for Cherbourg
State School

- Council’s concerns about the outcome of the Cherbourg Security Project

- A desire for the Cherbourg Police Station to be manned 24/7 with community patrols and more Police Liaison
Officers

- A crackdown on people using Council-owned houses for illegal business activities

- A project to turn a flat piece of land near the cemetery into a driving range for children to play golf

There was also a “very candid” discussion about mental health issues in the community.

Mayor Sandow called for accountability, saying there was a lack of face-to-face and culturally appropriate mental
health supports.

She called for funding for community-driven initiatives
such as SPAN (Suicide Prevention Action Network).
Council has donated the use of dongas beside the
Council building for the use of SPAN.

She said Council was also supporting the men’s group
for mental health counselling programs.

Dr Lynham described Cherbourg as “a community of
triumph”.

“This is a community that is doing really, really well.

Annual Report 2020/21 23



You only have to look at the recycling centre, Containers For Change, the school, the hospital and just when you
walk around the community. It is a magnificent community.

“| think the community has a strong journey forward. It is a strong and resilient, proud community.

“It is being displayed to me yet again that Cherbourg is a community that has direction. It knows what it wants. “It’s
not up to us to make any decision whatsoever in regards to Cherbourg’s future because the community knows its
future. It’s my role and the government’s role to assist to obtain that future”

(This story 1st appeared online at southburnett.com.au July 21st 2020)

BIG IDEAS FOR THE FUTURE

Ideas ranging from from plastic recycling to arts sales in Brishane were discussed during a recent visit of Queens-
land’s Chief Entrepreneur Leanne Kemp to Cherbourg .

Ms Kemp has been visiting various communities as Queensland comes out of COVID-19 shutdowns.

“How do we bring out the ‘give it a go’ spirit now that we are ‘good to go’ across Queensland?” she asked Cher-
bourg CEO Chatur Zala and Council representatives at a meeting at the Council chambers.

The CEO said unemployment was the biggest issue in Cherbourg, and what was needed was local jobs for local
people.

Ideas raised during the meeting included:

Hi-tech projects at Cherbourg’s material recovery facility. Ms Kemp was accompanied on her visit by Oliver Mac-
kay, from blockchain company Everledger which Ms Kemp founded in 2015. Everledger is working with Coex —the
not-for-profit organisation created to run the Containers for Change scheme in Queensland - on projects invalving
plastic.

The Cherbourg Men’s Shed — projects that could be implemented (including furniture restoration) and items that
could be marketed in Brishane. Ms Kemp, who toured the facility, suggested an exploranon of ways technology
could bring older and younger participants together. She also
suggested link-ups with other Men’s Sheds projects in Brisbane.
Potential cultural projects at the Indigenous Knowledge Centre. Art
sales, including creating arts from waste. Digital story telling, to
accompany art as well as support mental health initiatives.

Ms Kemp said there was a capability in Cherbourg for transformation
and change. (stories reprinted with permission southburnett.com.au)

MORE JOBS & TRAINING FOR COMMUNITY

There has been a lot of movement at Council lately, new positions being advertised and filled in various depart-
ments of CASC, as well as new trainees getting their first start.

Here at CASC it is our policy to offer increase skills and offer opportunities for further education and training as well.
Jackson Cobbo was in Bundaberg doing training for his Cert Il in Water operations recently.

The Training is held over three days and at the Bundaberg Water Treatment Plant.

We wish Jackson all the best for his future
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RUOK?

Regardless of where we live, or who our mab is, we can all go through tough times, times when we don’t feel great
about our lives or ourselves. That’s why it’s important to always be looking out for each other.

If someone you know — a family member, someone from your community, a friend, neighbour or workmate —is
doing it tough, they won’t always tell you. Sometimes it’s up to us to trust our gut instinct and ask someone who
may be struggling with life “Are you OK?".

By asking and listening, we can help those we care about feel more supported and connected, which can help stop
them from feeling worse over time.

In Cherbourg we have been hit hard by suicide in recent months, on September 10th our local Cherbourg Suicide
Prevention Action Network organised for a march through our streets.

Schoolchildren joined in, prayers were recited, drums were hanged and shouts of “RU OK” and “It ain’t weak to
speak!” echoed as we marched together carrying photographs remembering loved ones.

Our community members, elders, leaders and support workers took turns at speaking.

“It starts with just saying ‘are you okay’, but then being ready for that answer, too,” Sam Murray told the crowd.
“Don’t just use it as a slogan ... don’t let this be the end of something, let this be the start of something.”

ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE PROJECT

Cherbourg Council are working in conjunction with
SkillCentred, Noosa Council — Peregian Digital Hub,
Department of State Development Innovation and
Tourism (DSDIT) and ILSC (Indigenous Land and Sea
Corporation). As part of the future development of our
Cherbourg Material Recycling Facility we will be needing
people who are tech savvy to view images of containers
and separate them into

files which will be used to develop knowledge for visual
computers to identify different containers to help us
with automated stocktaking. We are looking for people
involved with the Skilling Queenslanders for Work (SQW)
programs in the 1st instance. Watch this space for
future updates.

NEW BALER FOR MRF

The BIG step forward for our Cherbourg Recycling Program
with the recent arrival of a twin ram baler.

Itis the largest baler outside Brisbane installed in a MRF.

It is hoped that it will bale nearly twice the density of our
previous baler and in 6-8 minutes achieve what was taking
us 1.5 hours (we will see).

It also has an automated tie off which is an additional featu-
re where we had a manual system before.
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CHERBOURG: READY FOR RAPID RESPONSE S

As of Friday 3rd of July, the Cherbourg community has moved to Level 3 of the Queensland Governments Easing
of Restrictions Plan, this is due to no confirmed cases of the COVID19 virus in community. Stage 3 also means that
Cherbourg LDMG is prepared with “Rapid Response Plans” in the event of a second wave of the virus.

At a meeting of our Cherbourg Local Disaster Management Group (LDMG) held on the 8th of July, chaired by
Mavyor Elvie Sandow, attended by Cherbourg Councilors along with representatives of Gympie Region DDMG,
Queensland Health, QPS, QFES, Local Disaster Coordinator and Council CEO Chatur Zala, it was agreed Cherbourg
would relax its status from “Stand Up” to “Lean Forward”. (Gympie DDMG will remain at “Stand Up” for a further 2
weeks)

With the recent easing of restrictions, and for the safety of our elders and health compromised members of com-
munity it is preferred that no visitors enter community travelling from outside of Queensland and especially not
from COVID Hotspots this includes the state of Victoria.

If you are unwell PLEASE do not come to Cherbourg.

Cherbourg LDMG and Council wish to acknowledge and thank the community, workers and first responders for all
your work, cooperation, and patience during the last four months in what have been very challenging times.
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TRACKSUITS FOR CHERBOURG STUDENTS

Now that life in our community starts to get back to normal, Mayor Elvie
Sandow and her council strongly support and encourage Cherbourg students
to get back into learning ways.

Funding from Department of Communities, Disability and Seniors for projects | 3
unable to be used due the COVID19 restrictions over the last few months,
have now been re-directed into supporting Cherbourg students.

After speaking with Director General for Department for Communities,

Disability and Seniors, Clare O’Connor, it was agreed by council funding that had been earmarked for other initiati-
ves could be better served supporting well-being of our young ones.

Mayor Elvie Sandow (a strong advocate for early childhood education) and Director General Clare O’Connor were
strongly in favour of paying for all Cherbourg students to get a tracksuit for the school that they attend.

CEO Chatur Zala said schools in Cherbourg and Murgon have been approached to arrange ordering and delivery of
the tracksuits for the eligible Cherbourg students, council will pay the invoice costs.

Councilors were present when around fifty students at St Josephs Catholic Primary issued students with their new
school tracksuits.
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MEMORIAL PARK UPGRADES

Cherbourg Memorial park has undergone further modification and beatifications this year.

The most recent transformation has seen sandstone hlocks installed for seating and decorative silhouettes added to
the memorial wall that honors our communities fallen soldiers.

Council has delivered this positive project in consultation with the Cherbourg Heritage Precinct (Ration Shed Mana-
gement) and Uncle Eric Law.

In an interview with Cherbourg Radio, Uncle Eric said he looked
forward to seeing the new seating being utilised by community as a
place of quiet contemplation or to relax with friends and family.

The project was funded through the Queensland Government Works
for Queensland 19/21 program. More additions to come included
shaded area and a new gate.

A big thank you to all involved in progressing this achievement,
especially the council works department crew who installed the

new sandstone blocks.
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OUR FUTURE

Our past has been written for us, but our future is in our own hands entirely. Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire
has faced many complications and hardships in the past, but the one thing that cannot be broken is our
resilience and determination to move forward and strengthen our Community. This last year has been
filled with successful initiatives to preserve our history, culture and community. Our future is moving full-
steam ahead to improving our resources, developing our infrastructure, sharing our culture and making
Cherbourg a safe, sustainable, strong and inspiring place to live.

The Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has already invested funds and grants into the following projects:
1 Indigenous Knowledge Centre

2. New houses for the community
3. Jack O’Chin Oval canteen and change-room development
4, Cattle Yard refurbishment

The following projects are currently being assessed for grant approval and is in the Council’s best interest
to pursue for the following years:

Community Hall refurbishment

IKC Healing Garden

Water Treatment Facility upgrade

MRF- Materials Recovery Facility upgrade

Main water pipeline reconstruction on Murray Road

Sports Complex upgrade

7 Rations Shed development

It’s thanks to the community of Cherbourg that we are all able to move into a bright and strong future,
which benefits our land, each other, our children and generations to come.

S
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE &
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

The following information provides details required by the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012

SENIOR CONTRACT EMPLOYEES SECTION 201 LGA 2009

Tot al remuneration payable to senior contract employees was $834.348. This includes housing. vehicle
costs. compulsory superannuation and telecommunication costs.

1 senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of

$125,001 - $225.001

3 senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of

$25,000 - $125,000

INVITATION TO TENDERER’S TO CHANGE THEIR TENDER SECTION 190 LGR 2012
No invitations to amend tender specifications under section 228(7) after tenders were called during 2019-
2020.

BENEFICIAL ENTERPRISES SECTION 41 LGA 2009
No Beneficial Enterprises were recognised during the 2019/2020 financial year.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES SECTION 45 LGA 2009
Council did not conduct any business activities during the financial year 2019-2020.

SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES SECTION 45 LGA 2009
Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the financial year
2019-2 0 20 . Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the previous financial year.

COMPETITIVE NEUTRALITY PRINCIPLE TO SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES SECTION 45 LGA 2009
Council did not conduct any significant business activities during the financial year 2019-20 20 .
» Assist in ensuring that Council is achieving ongoing improvements through a risk-based
approach. via performance audits: and
» To ensure compliance with legislation. council policy and procedures: and The focus this year
was placed on three (3) areas:

|. Cash Management Strategies and Policye review current systems and process in place to
manage cash maintained by the Council and review the current investment strategies.

2. Fraud Risk Management Framework: assess if Council has adequate systems in place to
appropriately identify and assess fraud risks.

3. Desktop Valuation - a review of the desktop valuation of property. plant and equipment report
prior to updating the asset register.

28 www.cherbourg.qld.gov.au



OVERSEAS TRAVEL SECTION 188 LGR 2012
No overseas travel was undertaken by councillors or staff on behalf of Council during the reporting period
2019-2020.

OTHER RELEVANT ISSUES TO MAKING AN INFORMED ASSESSMENT SECTION 190 LGR 2012
There are no known issues relevant to making an informed assessment of Cou nci I's operation and
performance in the financial year.

COMMERCIAL BUSINESS UNITS SECTION 190 LGR 2012
Council did not operate any Commercial Business Units during the 2019-2020 financial year.

RATES AND CHARGES SECTION 190 LCR 2012

The annual report must contalll a summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by the local
government. During 2019-2020. no concessions were granted.

DISCRETIONARY FUNDS SECTION 189 LCR 2012
Councillors did not have discretionary funds during the 2019-2020 financial year.
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COMMUNITY FINANCIAL REPORT

(section 184 Local Government Regulation 2012)

The Community Financial report is prepared to provide residents, businesses and other stakeholders with
an understanding of Council’s financial performance and position for the 2019/20 financial year. It aims to
give the reader a summary of Council’s financial statements along with key financial statistics and ratios,
including trends and forecasts.

Financial Statements are an audited formal record of the performance and position of Council. There
are four financial statements and three sustainability ratios that assist in providing a high-level picture of
Council finances for 2019/20.

The Financial Statements of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council set out the financial performance,
financial position, cash flows and the net wealth of council for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.
These are described as:

1. Statement of Comprehensive Income
A summary of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Councils financial performance for the year ending 30 June
2020, listing both regular income and expenses and other comprehensive income which records items
such as changes in the fair value of Council’s assets and investments.

2. Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June 2020 snapshot of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council’s Financial Position including its Assets
and Liabilities.

3. Statement of Changes in Equity

This is the overall change for the year (in dollars) of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council’s “net wealth”.
4. Statement of Cash Flows

Indicates where Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council’s cash came from and where it was spent.

5. Financial Sustainability Ratios

For reviewing Council performance and sustainability.

a) Operating surplus
b) Net financial liabilities
c) Asset sustainability
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REVENUE

The two main categories of revenue are recurrent revenue and capital revenue. Council’s recurrent
revenue is money raised that is used to fund the operations of Council. Council raises recurrent revenue
from income sources such as fees and charges, grants, subsidies and donations, sales revenue, rents and
other income. Council’s capital revenue is sourced for the purpose of constructing and/or reconstructing
Council’s assets now and into the future. Capital revenue consists of grants, subsidies and contributions
and capital sales revenue.

Overall recurrent revenue for 2019/20 decreased by $0.23M, which is attributed to:

. $0.25M increase in fees and charges, interest received & operating sales revenue

o $0.48M decrease in grants and contributions, rental income and other revenues

The main sources of recurrent income for the year were grants and subsidies and sales revenue
comprising 76 % of recurrent revenue and 24 % of Council’s total revenue. The income generated from
housing rental, fees and charges, interest and other income is 8% of total revenue.

Capital revenue for 2019/20 increased by $ 7.81M which is mainly attributed to $10.47M increase in
capital grant and $2.66 M decrease in capital sales revenue. Increase in capital grant revenue resulted
from the donation of waste water assets to Council from the Department of Local Government, Racing
and Multicultural Affairs and building from the Department of Housing and Public Works. Capital sales
revenue has decreased since there were no new housing projects during the year.

Council received capital income of $ 0.034m from the sale of plant and equipment.

M Fees & Charges

M Rental Income

M Interest Received

M Sales Revenue
Other income

W Operating Grants,
Subhsidies, Contributions

and Donations
M Capital Grants, Subsidies,

Contributions and

Donations
M capital Sales Revenue

M capital income
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EXPENGSES

Council's recurrent expenses include employee benefits, materials and services, finance costs and
depreciation. Council’s recurrent expenditure increased by $1.10M compared to the previous year. This
was due to the increase in employee benefits, depreciation and finance cost.

Employee benefits made up the largest type of expenditure at 52 % followed by materials and services at
26 %, depreciation at 22% and finance cost at 1%.

® Employee benefits
 Materials and services
M Finance costs

® Depreciation and amortisation
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THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

This statement is often referred to as the balance sheet and summarises the financial position of Council
at the end of the financial year. The statement measures what Council owns (assets) and what Council
owes (liabilities) at the end of the financial year with the difference between these two components
being the net community wealth (equity of Council).

The balance sheet indicates that Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has current ratio (current assets

/ current liabilities) of 2:1.This ratio means that the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has $2 of cash
and current assets for every $1.00 of current liabilities. The unrestricted current ratio has declined
significantly as a result of the increase in contract liabilities from the prior comparable period due to the
introduction of new accounting standards AASB 15 and AASB 1058. The contract liability for the year was
$4.98 M.

Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has no borrowing and has total asset base of $151 Million providing
borrowing capacity for future capital projects.However, its negative operating surplus ratio suggests
council may experience difficulty in repaying this debt.

Unrestricted Current Ratio

-_—

2016 2017 2018 2020
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ASSETS

Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire council Current Assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, inventories and contract assets. There was decrease in the cash balance of $2.02 M.

Council had invested $2.53 M in a trust account with Queensland Treasury Corporation and $ 9.85 M in
cash reserve with Westpac Bank. Interest income for the year was $106,972

Property plant and equipment is the largest asset type comprising $139M. Property plant and equipment
is made up of Council asset classes including land, buildings, houses, infrastructure, plant and equipment,
motor vehicles, furniture and fittings and works in progress. Council’s Houses and Building assets are the
largest component of property plant and equipment amounting to $ 99.51M.

Assets (S M)Comparatives
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LIABILITIES

Council’s liabilities comprise of contract liability, provisions, and trade and other payables. Liabilities
as at 30 June 2020 totalled $9.04 million. Provisions balance comprises long service leave payable to
employees ($0.36 million) and refuse restoration (52.40 million). Trade and other payables total $1.30
million. The contract liability for the year was $4.98 M.

Assets (S M)Comparatives

THE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
EQUITY

The statement of changes in equity illustrates how the net worth of Council has changed as a result of
activities undertaken during the period. Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has Community Equity of $
142.29 M at 30 June 2020.
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THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

This statement records the movement in cash holdings during the year. In 2020 the cash balance
decreased by $2.02 M from $12.10 million to a closing balance of $10.08 million at year end. Council’s
cash flows from operating activities remain negative, with operating deficit of $1.36 million. The

cash flows from investing activities shows Council spent $6.49 million investing in property plant and
equipment, which was funded by capital revenue. This includes capital works on Council’s infrastructure
assets, houses, building and other asset classes.

Net Cash Flow Sources(SM)
5-

Ope ities Inv ities Financing Activities Ne tin
$(0.50)
$(1.00)
$(1.50)

$(2.00)

$(2.50)
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COUNCIL'S CAPITAL EXPENDITURE FOR
2019/2020 BY ASSET CLASS

Houses

Buildings

Land

Motor Vehicles
Plant and Equipment
Furniture & fittings
Infrastructure

Work in Progress

COUNCIL'S MAJOR PROJECTS FOR
2019/2020

Existing Houses Major Upgrades

LGGSP Smart Management of Infrastructure with Enhanced GIS Capability
LGGSP Intranet Communication & Connectivity Upgrade
Cherbourg Material Recovery Facility Upgrade Stage 3
Cherbourg Material Recovery Facility Upgrade Stage 4
Installation of CCTV Cameras

Roads to Recovery

Cherbourg Historical Precinct

W4Q3 Projects

Historical Precinct Upgrade

Town Pathway extension

Sports Centre Upgrade

Roads & Kerbing

Cherbourg memorial Park Upgrade

Cherbourg Radio Station Upgrade

Security Fencing and Public Waste Bins

Job Active Hub Structural Upgrade

Demolition Project

Lighting Replacement

Large Shed Ventilation and Insulation Project
Roadway fencing

Cherbourg Town entrance beautification

Murgon to Cherbourg Footpath Upgrade

Cherbourg Rising Main

Cherbourg Solid Waste

Cherbourg Waste Water

These expenditures have been funded through Grants and Contributions. Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire
Council would like to thank the commonwealth and state Governments to their ongoing support to the
development of the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Area. '
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FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
MEASURES

The Financial Sustainabhility of Councils continues to be a cornerstone of the Local Government Act and
a core responsibility of individual councils across Queensland. The Financial Susiatanibility indicators (in
accordance with the Local Government regulation 2012) that council must publish are as follows:

Operating Surplus Ratio:

Operating Surplus ratio shows council’s ability to cover operating expenses through its continuing
operating revenue raised (excluding capital grants and contributions). The target for the operating surplus
ratio is between 0 and 10%. Since Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council is highly dependent on external
grant funding, operating Surplus ratio at 30 June 2020 was at a deficit of 43%. Cherbourg Aboriginal

shire council is aware of the need to generate its own revenues from its own operations and reduce its
spending levels in the short-term.

Operating surplus

ratio
20
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Asset Sustainability Ratio:

This ratio measures the amount of capital expenditure on renewal of existing assets compared to the
depreciation expense. The target for this ratio is greater than 90%. Cherbourg Council has met the

benchmarks recommended in respect to asset sustainability ratio. The average asset sustainability ratio is
89%.This is marginally outside the target range but has been increasing over time .Continued investment

in future years will ensure that Council can adequately replace its assets as they near the end of their
useful life. However, this will likely depend on the ability of Council to continue to attract capital grant

revenue.
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Net Financial Liabilities Ratio:

This ratio represents Council’s ahility to fund its liabilities through its operating revenues. The target

for this ratio is less than 60%. Council’s net financial liabilities ratio as at 30 June 2020 is -34%. The net
financial liability ratio has decreased from 2019 (-104%) as a result of a significant increase in total
liahilities from the prior comparable period due to the application of new accounting standards AASB 15
and AASB 1058.The net financial liabilities ratio indicates that while Council’s capital structure appears
adequate for its size. If council intends to obtain debt funding for future capital projects, its negative
operating surplus ratio suggests council may experience difficulty in repaying this debt.

12

Percentage

Net financial liabilities ratio
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Income
Revenue
Recurrent revenue
Feaes and charges
Rental income
interes! received
Sales revenua
Other Income
Grants, subsidies, contributions and denations

Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Sales revenue

Totat Capltal Revenue

Other capital income
Total revenue

Expenses

Recurrent expenses

Employee benefits

Materials and services

Finance costs

Depreciation and amoriisation

Property, plant and eguipment

Total expenses

Capital expenses
Capital expenses
Total expenses

Net result

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Increasef{decrease) in asset revatuation surplus

Totat other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2020 2018
Note 3 %
3(a) 718,635 675,312
1,041,049 1,162,485
106,972 72,883
3(b} 3,245,649 3,070,453
180,361 209,873
3{c} 3,237,214 3,472,876
8,530,880 8,763,893
3¢ 16,721,135 B,249,498
3{d) 2,226,982 4,885,449
98,948,117 11,134,947
4 34,472 447,024
27,513,469 20,345,864
5 {5,375,187) (4,945,487}
6 {3,214.361) (3,718,243)
(81,538) {7,119}
11 (2.562,311) (2,457,558)
(12,233,334) (11,128,507)
7 (1,224,621) (2,325,679)
{13,458,015) (13,454.188)
14,055,454 6,891,678
14 294,804 1,883,673
294,804 4,883,673
14,350,258 8,775,351

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2020

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Biclogical assets
Contract assets
Total current assets

MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Curreat liabilifies

Trade and other payabies
Contract liabilities
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current lizbilities
Trade and other payables

Pravisions
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net community assets
Community equity
Assel revaiuation surplus

Retained surplus

Total community eqguity

2020 2018
Note $ 8
8 19,080,645 12,105,103
9 994,803 1,133,819
224,548 138,546
105,513 346,985
10{a) 559,687 -
11,965,196 18,724 553
1 139,374,849 123,779,569
138,374,849 123,779,863
151,340,045 137,504,522
12 599,277 1,281,484
10{b) 4,984,510 .
13 209,722 257,618
5,893,508 1,539,102
iz 603,000 600,000
13 2,550,526 2,440,138
3,153,526 3,040,138
8,047,035 4,579,240
142,293,010 132,925,282
14 44,251,405 43,956,605
98,041,601 88,968,677
142,283,010 132,925,282

The above statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying nules and Significant Accounting

Policies.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Asset Retained Total Community
revaluation Surplus Equity
surplus
Note
$ $ 3

Balance as at 1 July 2018 43,956,505 88,968,677 132,925,282
Adjustment on initial application of AASB 15/ AASE 1058 - (4,982,530} (4,982,530}
Reslated balance at 1 July 2019 43,956,605 83,986,147 127,942,752
Net operating surplus - 14,055,454 14,055,454
Qther comprehensive income for the year

increase in asset revaluation surplus 14 294,804 - 294,804
Total comprehensive income for the year 294,804 14,055,454 14,350,258
Balance as at 30 June 2020 44,251,409 98,041,601 142,293,010
Balance as at 1 July 2018 42,072,932 82,141,198 124,214,130
Adjustment on initiat application of AASB 9 {64,199) (64,199)
Restated balances 2t 1 July 2018 42,072,932 82,076,999 124,149,931
Net operating surplus - 6,891,678 5,881,678
Other comprehensive income for the year

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 4 1,883,673 - 1,883,673
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,883,673 6,851,678 8,775,351
Balance as at 30 June 2019 43,956,605 88,968,677 132,925,282

The ahove statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.
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Cherbourg Ahoriginal Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipls from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Finance Expenses

Renlal income

Non capital grants and contributions

Net cash Inflow (outflow) from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for properly, plant and equipment

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Capitat Sales Revenue

Preceeds from sale of property, piant and equipment
Net cash inflow {outflow) from investing actlvities
Net increase (decrease) in cash held

Cash at beginning of the financial year

Cash at end of the financial year

Note 2020 2049
$ $

4,744,537 4,019,882
(10,629,278) {8,340,258)

{6,284, 741) 14.320,376)

106,972 72,893
(5,950 (7,118)

1,584,173 1,162,486

3,237,214 3,472,876

18 (1,362,332) 380,760
6,497,318) (5,302,940)

5,043,300 6,249,458

725,892 4,885,449

66,000 1,405,318

662,126) 5,637,325

(2,024,458) 6,018,085
12,105,103 5,087,018

8 16,080,645 72,105,103

The above stalement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of Significant Accounting

Folicies.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1

1.4

1.8

1.C

1.0

1.E

1.F

Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial stalerments for the pericd 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 have been prepared i accordance with
all Austrafian Accounting Standards, Austratian Accounting Interpretations and ather pronouncements issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board. They also comply wilh the requirements of the Local Government Act 2068 and the Local
Government Regulation 2012,

Counci is a not-for profit entity for financial reporting purposes and complies with Australian Accounting Standards as applicable
to not-for prefit entities.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conventlion except for the revaluation of certain non-
currant assets.

Tne Cherbourg Aberiginal Shire Counail is constituled under the Queenstand Local Government Act 2008 and is domiciled in
Australia.

Date of authorisation

‘The financial statements were authorised for igsue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-Generat for final signature,
This is the date the management cerificate is signed.

Currency
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency.

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

Council adopted all standards which became mandaterily effective for annual reporting periods beginning on 1 July 2019.
The standards which had an impact on reported position, performance and cash flows were those relating to revenue and
leases, Refer to the change in accounting policy note 19 for transition disclosures for AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with
Customers and AASB 1058 income of NFP Entities,

Council has also reviewad AASBE16 Leases and while Councli leases a number of itens of equipment, the assets are considered
tow value and are not subject to lease accounting. Further information on the treatment of leases is at Note 1Q.

Some Australian Acceunting Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective. These Standards include
AASB2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Definition of Material. Those standards have not been applied in
these financial statements and are not expected to have a material impact. Council will implement them when thay are effective.

Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Councll Makes a number of judgements, estimates and assumgptions in preparing these financial statements . These are based
on the best information available to Councit at the time, howaver due to tha passage of time, these assumptions may changa
and therefore the recorded balances may not refiect the final cutcomes, The significant judgements, estimates and assumptions
relate to the following items and specific information is provided in the relevant note:

« Vaiuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment - Note 1..J and Note 11
« Restoration provisions - Note 1.Q & Note 13

+ Contingencies - Note 18

« Impairment of trade and other receivables- Note 1.1, Note 8 and Note 20

+ Valuation of biological assets - Note 1.L

Revenue

2020 accounting policies:

Fess and charqes

Fees and charges are recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the customer receives Lhe benefit of
the goods/services being provided. The performance olligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the
customers and generally the payment terms are within 30 days of the provision of the services. There is no material obligation by
Council in relation to refunds or returns.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1.F

1.6

Revenue {continued)

Grant inceme under AASE 15

Where grant income arises fram an agreement which is enfarceable and contains sufficienily specific performance obligations
then the revenue is recognised when contro! of each performance obligations is satisfied. The performance obfigations are
varied based on the agreement. Payment terms vary depending on the lerms of the grant, cash is received upfront for some
granls and en the achievement of certain payment milestones for olhers. Each performance obligation is considered lo ensure
that the revenue recognition reflacts the transfer of control and within grant agreements there may be some performance
abligations where control ransfars at a point in time and others which have continuous transfer of control aver the life of the
contract,

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most approprate methods {o reflect the transfer of benefit,

Grant ingome under AASE 1058

Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is received.Council
considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in accordance
with the relevant accounting standards, Once the assets and liabiiities have been recognised then income is recognised for any
remaining asset value at the time lhe asset is received,

Capital grants

Capital grants received to enable Councit to acquire or construct an item of preperty, plant and equipment to identified
specifications which wiil be under councif's control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and whan the
obligation to construct or purchase is completed. For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in
accordance with costs incurred. Where assets are donated or purchased for significantly below fair value, the revenue is
recognised when the assel is acquired and contrefled by the Council.

Rental income

Renlal revenus from property is recognised as income on a peradic straigh! line basis over the lease term or when Coungil has
entitlerment to invoice for services provided,

Sales Revenue

Revenue from sale of goods is recogrised when the customer has talen delivery of the goods. Revenue from services is
recognised when the service is rendered. Sales revenue is classified in to capitat revenue for major upgrade and recurrent
revenue for mingr repairs and maintenance work, Revenue from housing maintenance generally comprises a recoupment of
material costs fogether with an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. This ravenue and the associated costs are
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity based on the costs incurred at the reporting date,
Where consieration is received for the service in advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue in the
pericd when the service is performed. There are no contracts in progress at at the year end.

2019 accounting policias:

Fees and ¢charges

Fees and charges are recognised on delivary of the associaled service.

Grants and subsidies

Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocai in nalure are recognised as ravenue in the year in which Councii
chtains control over them which is usually upon receipt of funds, An equivalent amount is recognised as a restriction over cash
balalnces unsil the funds are expended.

Rental income

Rental revenue from property is recognised as income ¢n a periadic straight line basis over the lease term or when Council has
entitlernent to invoice for services provided.

Sales Revenue

Contract revenue is recognised at the agreed conlract price due at the time of sale or delivery. Sales revenue is ¢lassified in to
capital revenue for major upgrade and recurrent revenue for miser sepairs and maintenance work,

Financial assels and financial fiabilities

Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liabitity in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council
becomes a party to the centractuat pravisions of the instrument,

Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance
date as follows:

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents -measured at amorised cost (Nole 1.H)

Receivables - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.1)

Financia! liabilities

Payables - measured at amortised cost {Note 1.P)
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

MNotes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1.G

1.H

1.

14

Financial assets and financial Habilitles {continuad)

Cauncil daes not recagnise any financiat assets or financial liabilities at fair value in the statement of financial position. The
carrving amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade payables approximate their fair value due to their
short-term, liquid natuze.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents in the statement of cash flow includes cash on hand, all cash and chegques receipted but not banked
at the year end, deposits held at call with finencial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investiments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily converlible {o known amounts of ¢ash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank cverdrafis.

Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery or advance i.e. the agreed purchase
price / contract price. Seltlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invaice date.

The coliectability of receivables is assessed periodicaliy and If there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect
all ameunts due, the camying amount is reduced for impairment.

All known bad debts were wrilten-off at 30 June. Council reviews receivable balances on an individual basis {o assess the
expected credit losses of trade receivables from individuat customers. if an amount is recoverad in 2 subssquent period itis
recognised as revenue,

Property, plant and eguipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated af cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulaled depreciation
and accumulated impairment fess. Items of plant and equipment with a total value of less than 510,000, and infraskucture
assels and buildings with a totat value of less than $10,600 are treated as an expense in the year of acguisition. All other items
of property, plant and equipment are capitalised.

The classes of properly, plant and equipment resognised by the Coundll are:
+Land

+ Bulldings

« Houses

» Motor Vehicles

+ Piant and Equipment

«Furniture and fittings

+Infrastructure -Roads & Bridges, Water, Sewerage and other structures
«Work in Progess

Acquisition of assels

Acquisitions of assels are initiaily recorded at cost. Cost is delermined as the fair value of the assels given as consideration plus
costs incidental to he acquisition, Including freight in, architect's fees and engingering design fees and &il other establishiment
cosls,

Property, plant and equioment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues af fair value by
Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition threshelds for Lhe respective asset class. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market paicipants at the measurement date,

Capital and operating expenditure

Wage and materials expenditure incurred for the acquisition of construction of assets are treated as capital expendilure. Routine
operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity of the non-current asset is
expensed as incusred, while expenditure that refates to reptacement of a major component of an asset ta maintain its service
potential is capitalised.

Valuation

tand, buildings, houses, plant and equipment including moter vehicies and all infrastructure assets are measurad at fair valus
under the the revaluation model, in accordance with AASB116 Propery, Fiant and Equipment, Other plant and equipment is
measured at cost.

Non-cusrent physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying ameunt of each class of
zssel does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date, This is achieved by comprehansively revaluing these
assels at least once every five years, with interim valuations using a suitable index being otherwise performed on an annual
basis where there has been a material variation in the index.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1.K

iL

1.M

Preperty, plant and equipmaent (cont)

Any revaluation increment asising on the revaluation of an assel s credited ta the appropriate class of the asset ravaluation
surplus, except to the exient it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense, A decrease
in the carrying amaunt on revaluafion is charged as an expense {o the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluaticn
surplus of thal asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proporicnately with the change in the carrylng amount of the asset and any
change in ihe estimate of remaining useful life.

Separately idenlified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets 1o which they relate.

Setails of valuers and methods of valuations are disclosed in Note 11

Capital work in proggess
The cost of properiy, plant and equipmenl being constructed by the Council includes the cost of purchased services, materials,
direct labeur and an appropriate proporiion of labour averheads,

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful iife. Depreciation on other property, plant and eguipment is calculated on a
straight-iine basis so as to write-off the net cost or revatued amount of each depreciable asset, less ils estimated residual value,
progressively over its estimated useful life 1o the Council.

Assels are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, In respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is
completed and commissioned ready for use,

Where assets have separately identifiable cormponents that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned
useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate, Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or
service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining usef! life of the
asset to the Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition thresheld are capitalised and
depreciated on lhe same Basis as he asset to which they relate.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually. Details of the range of useful lives foreach
class of asset are shown in Note 11.

Deed of Grant in Trust Land

The Caouncii is located on fand assigned 1o it under a Deed of Grant in Trust (OOGIT) under Section 34| of the Land Acf 1954, It
comprises an area of approximately 3,560 hectases,

The land is administered by the Department of Natural Rescurces, Mines and Energy and the Council has restricted use of this
land fer the benefit of shire inhabitants. The DOGIT land has not been taken up in the Council's assels as its value cannct be
reliably measured.

Biological assets

The Council has a beef livestock operation. These assets are vatued at market value at reporting date. In view of the immaterial
nature of this operation the accounting principles under AASB 141 related lo biclogical assets have not been applied. The costs
intcurred in this operation are included in Council's general operations as they are incurred.

tmpairment of non-current assets

Each non-cusrent physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. if an
indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the
asset's carying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable ameunt of an
asset is the higher of its fair value Jess costs to sefl and its value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense In prefit and loss, unfess the asset is carried at & revalued amount, When the
assetis measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss Is offset against lhe asset revaiuation surplus of the relevant class
to the extent available.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 1o the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A revarsal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income unless the assel is carried at a revalued amaunt, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation surplus increase.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1N

1.0

1P

1.Q

Payables

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract
price net of applicable discounts other than centingent discounts. Amaounts owing are unsecured and are gensrally seitled on 30
day terms.

Liabilities - employee henefits

Salaries and wages
A liabitity for salaries arxl wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in
respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an acciued expense.

Annual leave

Afiabitity for annual leave is recognised. The porlion expected to be whelly seltfed within twelve months is calculated on cursent
wage and salary levels and includes related employee on-costs. The perion not expected to be wholly settled within twatve
month is calculated on projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, discounted to present values.
Annual leave which has vested (or will vest in less than 12 months) is classified as current regardless of the measurement basis
used in AASB 119,

Siclk ieave
Slck leave laken in the future will be met by future entitlements and hence no recognition of sick leave has been made in these
financial statements.

Superannuation
The superannuation expense for the reporting pedod s the ameunt of the contribution the Council makes to the superannuation
plan which provides benefits ta its employees. Details of ihose arrangements are set outin Note 17.

Long service [eave

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present vaiue of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up o the reporting date. The value of the liability is caleulated using current pay rates and
projected {Utuse increases inthose rates and includes refated empioyee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probahility
of the employee remaining in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being
raquired to meet the fiability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result
is discounted to present value. The interest rates altaching to Commenwealth Government guaranteed securities at the reporiing
date are used 1o discount the esfimated fulure cash outfiows o their present value. This Hability is reported in Note 13 as a
provision, Long service leave which has vested { or will vest in less than 12 months) is classified as current regardless of the
measuerment basis used in AASS 119,

Asset revaluation surplus

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating 1o changes in value of property, plant and equipment that do not
result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying velue of classes of non-current assefs since their
initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus,

Increases and decreases on revaiuation are offset within a class of assets,

Where a class of assels is decreased on revaluation, that decraase is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset
revaiuation surplus in respect of that cfass. Any excess is treated as an expense.

When an asset is disposed of, the amount reported in surplus in respect of that asset is retained in {he asset revaluation surplus
and not transferred to retained surplus.

AASB 16 Leases

2020 Accounting Policies

AASB 15 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a laase liability representing its obligation to make lease payments, There
are recognition exemptions for shor-term leases and leases of Jow-vatue items. Lessor accounting remains similar o the current
standard — .. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases.

Leases in which the Council is a lessee

Council has applied the exception to lease accounting for leases of low-value assets and short-term Jeases, Council lzases a
number of items of equipment, a number of the assels are considerad low value and are therefore not subject o lease
accounting. Council recognises the payment associated with this lease as an expense on 4 straight -line basis overthe lease
term.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes fo the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1.0

iR

1.5

1.7

AASB 16 Leases (continued}

Leases in which the Council Is a lessor

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the assef have been transferred to the fessee. if the risks and
rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease. Gouncil has
leased commercial buildings including the Canleen and giher office renial premises. These were identified as operating leases
and we have assessed that there will be no changes in Council's (lessor) accounling pelicy for rental income, per AASE 16,

Peppercorn Leases
Council is the lesseg of a number of Deed of Grant in Trust leases, for which ne or fille lease payments are made. These have

been identified as peppercorn leases which are currently not recognised in Council's financial slatements. Council Intends to
elect not to apply the fair value measurement requirements to these leases.

2019 Accounting Policies
The Councit entered info operating leases on IT equipment, wilh lease terms between two zand five years. Council recognised the
payments associated with thase leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

National competition pelicy

The Councif has reviewed its activities to identify its business activities, Council has resolved that none of its activities fall within
the National Competion Policy guidelines and has therefore chosen not to apply the Code of Comgpetitive Conduct,

Rounding and comparatives

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1.

Taxation

Council is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (GST'), The net
amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability respectively.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2. Analysis of Results by Function

2(a)

Components of council functions

The aciivities relating to the Council's components reporied on in Note 2(b) are as foliows

Corporate services and governance

This comprises the support functions for the Mayer and Councillors, Council and cemmittee meetings and statutory

requirements. It also includes management and reporting of Council's finances, information technology and
administration.

Community services

Community services and facilities include cultural, health, welfare,disaster managesment, sports and regreational
services, radio station, NDiS and management of the indigenous knowiedge centre,

Economic and community development

This comprises Councll enterprises incorporating catlie stug farm, material resycling facility, crop and vegetable
praduction, and includes training ane employment initiatives.

Housing

The provigion, maintenance and upgrading of public housing within the DOGIT area, inciuding the planning and
construction of new houses and lenancy agreements.

Infrastructure

Provision and maintenance of water supply and services, drainage, sewerage services and treatrment, refuse
collection and waste disposal services.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
Feor the year ended 30 June 2020

3 Revenue analysis
Revenue recognised at a paint in time

Fees and charges

Szles revenue

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donalions
Capital sales revenue

Revenue recognised over time

Revenue relaling to grants for assets controlled by Counci

Tolal revenue

fa) Feos and charges
Community fees and charges
Post office commissicns
Sewvice charges
Building lease charges

(b) Sales revenue
Sal of services
Recoverable works - BAS

Joingry sales

Sale of goods
Livesiock sales

Produce {arm

Mateiial recycling facility
Confainers for Change
QOther Sales

‘Tolal sales revenue
[c) Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Recurrent

General purpose granis

Slale government subsidies and grants
Commonwealth goverament subsidies and grants

Capital
State government subsidies and grants

Commenwaailh government subsidies and grants
Contributions and donations

{d) Capital sales revenue
Recoverable capital works - BAS
Joinery capilal works - BAS
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AASB16 AASB1058
Mote § $
Ha) 719,835 -
by 3,245,649 -
3¢} - 17,027,532
ad) 2,226,882 -
6,192,266 17,027,532
ey - 2,930,817
- 2,930,817
6,192,286 18,958,349
2820 2919
Note $ §
75,370 62,100
11,000 12,060
625,162 595,352
8,103 5,860
719,635 675,312
1,871,634 2,268,356
88,167 46,346
2,060,001 2,314,702
180,220 226,158
- 11,152
13,660 8,954
980,110 432,650
1,658 76,837
1,185,648 755,751
3,245,649 3,070,453
2,483,747 2,440,475
412,467 554,458
341,000 477,942
3,237,214 3,472,878
2,852,040 2,534,609
690,175 3,714,889
13,176,020 -
16,721,135 6,249,498
2,141,842 4,587,298
85,140 298,151
2,226,382 4,885,449




Cherhourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Capital income

Gain foss op disposal of non-current assels

Proceeds from safe of plant and equipment

Less: Book valuz of piant and equipment sold

Proceeds from sale of fand and improvements

Less: Baok value of jand sold
Total capifalincome

Employee benefits

Totaf stalf wages and salaries

Counciliers' remuneralion

Annual and long sesvice leave entittermnents
Sugeraanuation

Other employee related expenses
Less ; Capifalised employee expenses

2020 2019
Nole 5 $

60,000 0o

(25,528) (5,294}

34,472 (4,394}

- 1,404,418
- {953,000}

34,472 447,024

5,152,177 3,529,264

320,337 319,744

401,618 424,273

17 514,255 423,767
6,388,385 5,097,048

68,341 144,376

(81,539) (295,537)

6,375,187 4,945 487

Councilor remuneration represents salary, and other allewances paid in respect of carrying out their dulles,

Tolal Councii employees at the reperting dale:

Elecled mermbers

Adminisiration slalf

Depol and ouldoars staff

Total full time equivalent empioyees

Materials and services

Administration supplies and consumables
Audit services

Consultants

Etectricily

Entesprise cenlre inping cosls
Licence fees

insurance

Jainery expenses

Mavemeant in inveniory

Malor vehicle expanses

Prinding & stationery

Radic Operating Expanses

Rapairs and maintenance
Subscriptions and advestising
Telephone & fax

Travel

Water & sewerage operational cosis
Bad and doubtful debis

Clher maternals and services

Capital expenses

Provision for restoration of land
Recagnition of refuse restoration pravision

Capital write off - Disposal of Assets

Page 16 of 30

2020 2019
5 5
12 13
74 72
91 30
63,423 31,844
55,738 0,000
198,124 184,261
172,845 172,762
446,458 453,870
560 551
278,941 375,452
70,162 154,761
155,570 34,873
334,706 213,400
58,805 51,219
4,768 17,024
576,584 1,207,719
988 2,182
85,137 67,014
30,003 39,848
204,480 99,244
403,074 177,385
41,898 284,814
3,214,381 3,718,343
2,325,679
. 2,325,679
1,224,621 .
1,424,621 2,325,678




Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

10

2020 2012
Nate $ $
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and an hand 10,080,545 12,105,103

Cash and deposits at calt are heldin the Westpac Bask in normat lerm deposils and business cheque accounts.
The bank currenlly has shor lerm rating of P-1 and long term rating of Aa2,

Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade receivables 20 2,308,024 2,150,646

L.2ss loss afowance 20 {1,380,075) (1,057,088)

Prepaymeants 65,654 40,259
994,803 1,133,819

Movement in accumulated imapairment losses Is as follows:

Cpening balance 1,057,086 828,234

Adjustment 1o opening balance upsn applicalion of AASRB Y - 64,199

Additional provislens raised 322,98% 164,653

Closing balance 1,380,075 1,057,068

Contract assels and lability

Whers he armounts billed {o customers are based on the achievement of vadous milestones established ia the
coniract, the amounts recognised as revenus in 2 given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts
billed to or ¢erlified by the cusiomer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transfering a promised good or service 1o the customer before the
custemer pays consideration or before payment is due, Council presents the work In pregress as 2 contract
asset, unless the dghts to thal amount of consideralion are unconddional, in which case Council recognises a
recaivable,

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer/ fund provider prior 1o Ceuncil tansfering a
good or sepvice 1o the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract
liakility.

a, Contract assoets

Conirac! assets atse when work has been performed by Councit relating to a contract vilh customer (or capital
grant paid in arcears } but ne recelvable has ansen sinee the invoice has not been raised.

2020
U S
Current Conlract Assets 550,687

b. Contract liabilities

A contract fabitily arfises whan Coundil has received consideration or has an uncondiional right to recelve
consideration from the cusliomer before lhe Council {ransfers a good or service to the customer. [t is the
obligation lo transfer the good or service of the receipt of {unds prior 1o performance chligations being salisfied,

Funds recelved upfront (o consiruct Council controlled assets 4,854,610
Deposils received in advance of services provided 36,600

4,984,510
Current contract liabilities 4,984,510

Non -curreat confract Fabilitias -
4,984,510

Revenue recegnised it the reporting period that was included in the contract Eabifities opening balance.

Fuads received uplront ta conslruct Council controlled assets 839,218
839,218

The contract liabilty relales 1o msjor projects such as the Murgon Footpath Upgrade, Waste Walar Treatment
Plant, 2nd exlensions to the Material Recovery Facility, Il is expecied thal these projects will be completed during
the 2020-2921 financial year.

The Conlract asseis and laibilities have ansen on adeption of AASB 15 and AASE 1058. The impact of this
change in accounting policy resulledin an increase ia contract liabiities and contracl assels respectively by
$559,687 and $4,984,510 at 30 June 2020,
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Nates to the financial statements
Forthe year ended 30 June 2020

11 Properly, Plant and Equipmant

(i) Fair Value Helrachy

The falr values of assels are determined using vatualion techniquas which maxhnise the use of chservable dala, vhere Ris
available, ang minimise the use of entily spaclfic eslimates, To provide zn indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair values, council classifies assels which are measured at fair value into the three levels prescribed under AASB 13,
as follows:

Level 1; Fair value based on qualed prices (unadusled) In active markels for identicat assels or liabiities.
Laval 2: Fair value based on inpuls thal are directly or indirectly observabie for the asset o liabilily,
Leval 3: Falr valze based on unobservabie inputs for the asset and Hability.

There were no ransfars between lavels during the year,

The following lables summarise Ihe classification of councils assots into Lha levels defined above.

020
Asset Category Laovel 1 l.avel 2 Lavel 3 Total
Land - 663,000 . 863,000
Buildings and Houses - - 95,625,064 99,625,054
Moter Vehicles - 656,747 . 656,747
Ptant and Equipment . 2,537,172 - 2,537,172
Infrasiruciure . - 34,710,243 34,719,243
- 3,856,918 134,344,307 138,201,226
2019:
Assat Category Leval 1 Levei 2 Leval 3 Total
Land . £63,000 - 853,000
Buildings and Houses . - 97,891,298 97,801,298
Melor Vehicles - 497,402 - 497,402
Plani and Equipment . - 1,612,756 - 1,612,756
Infrastruclure - - 22,081,217 22,001,217
- 2,773,158 119,802,515 122,865,673

Council does nol carry any assets or liabilies al fair value other than properly, plant and equipment as described above.

(7l) Basis of valuation and valuation processes

All assets with Lhe exception of fumniture and Gtlings and capilal work in progress are measured at fal value ulifising the valuation
basis' described befow. independent comprehensive valuations of each calegory of asset are undartaken on aroling basis with
each category being subject {o comprehensive revaluation at least once every five years. In intesvening years desklop valuation
updates are performed eliher intematly or by an Independent valuer. Desklop valuations apply an indexatien facler 1o the the
previous camprehensive valualion and consider any knovm factors giving rise to a change in assel condilion which have oscurred
since the iast comprehensive valualion. Where an Independent valuer is engaged to undertake a desiop valation update, a sample
of assets vill be physically inspected by the independent valuer in order to gauge changes in assel condilions.

The {able betow summarises the lavel of detall applied ir determining the value of Councll's assets as at 30 June 2020

Valuation Effective Date of Last
Asset Category Effective Farformed By Comprehonsive Rerformed By
30 June 2020 Valuallon
APV Valuers and APV Valuers and
Land Desklop Assel Management 300672017 Asset Management
APV Valuers and APV Valuers and
Buildings and Houses Deskiop Assel Management IH0BIZNT Assel Management
APV Valuers and APV Valuers and
Molor Vehicles Desklop Assel Management 3016512017 Assel Managemenl
APV Valuers and APV Valsers and
Plant and Equipment Deskiop Assel Management 30/06/2M17 Assel Management
APV Valuers and APV Valuers and
tufrastructure Daskiop Asset Management 30/06/2017 Assel Managemenl
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

11 Preperly, Plant and Eguipment
(i) Valuation teehniques to derlve fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuatians

Land (levsl 2)

Land falr values have been defermined by direst compatison lo the sales prices of camparable psoperties In close proximily
adjusted for difference in key atiribules such as properly size, The most significant inputs into this valuation approeach are prica per
stuare metre and the indexation rale applied in the current period desklop valuation update, Al land values are based on the
assumplion that contaminants such as asbeslos, chemicals, toxic wastes or other hazardous materals do not exist on these land
parcels,

Buildings and Houses (level 3}

Communily and residantial buildings wilkia the Cherhoerg Aboriginal Shire Ceuncl are nat able 1o ke ransterred on a market basis,
and as such sales evidence is nol availabiz {0 supped a markel-hased valisalion approach, Buildings and houses are therafere
valued using a current replacement cosl methodelogy, which estimates the replacement cast for each building by compenentising
the buildings inlo significant parts with gifferent usefi lives and taking into account a range of factors. The gross current values are
derived frem reference to markel data for recent projects and cosling quides Issued by the Ausirafian Institule of Quantity Surveyors
and Rawlinson's (Ausiratian Consirugilon handbook),

A calcutated accumulaled depreciation charge Is sublracted from the gross replacement cosi io reflect the consumed or expired
service polential of e assel. In determining the level of accumulaled depreciation the assels have bean disaggregalad inlo
significant parts which exhiit different patierns of consumption or useful lives, Allowance has been made for the typical assef
fifecycle and renewal treaiments of each componeni, the pattern of consumplion of the assel's fulure economic benefits and the
condition of the assel. Condilion was assessed taking into account beth physical characteristics as well as holistic facters such as
funclionalily, capacity, uliisation and chsclescancea.

[n order to assess the remaining service potential the following consumplion scering system is applied:

Phase Points Dascriplion
0.0.99 New or very good condition - very high levef of remaining service polentizl,
Mot nesw bul in very good condition with sio indicaters of any fulure obsolescence and
1-1,99 providing a high level of remaining service potenlish,
Aged and in good condilion, providing an adequate level of remaining service potential,
2.2.99 No signs of immediate er short-term cbsolescence,

Providing an adequate lavel of remaining service potential but there are some concerns
over the asset's ability to cantinue to provide an adequate tevel of senice in the short to
3-3.99 mediom term. May be signs of obsolescance in short ta mid.term,

indicators showing the need lo renaw, upgrade or scrap in near fulure. Should be
reftected by inclusion in the capital works plan to renev of replace in short-lerm, Very low

4-499 level of remaining service polenlial,
Atintervention peint, No longer providing an acceplable level of service, If remedial
5 aclion is ot taken immeadiately the assel will need fo be clesed or degommissioned,
6- End of Life Theorelical end of fife.

New buiidings are valued at lhe aclual cost of consteuction in ihe year they are consiructed, and subsequently under the appreach
deseribed above,

The most significant inpuls inlo the vafualion approach are consliuction £ost unit rales (per square melre), the splil belweean short
and long-iived subcomponents, estimated usef llves, pallern of consumplien, asset conditian, and the indexation rate appliedin
pesiods where a deskiop valuation is underiaken,

The repfacement costs applied in the valualions were derived by APV Valuers and Asset Managemen! from reference to costing
guides issued by the Ausirallan Inetiute of Quantity Surveyoers, Ravdinson's {Australian Construction Handbock), construction data
from lhe Austratian Bureay of S{atistics, and the valuer's own internal market research and coslings.

Motor Vehicles (level 2)
Molor vehicle assel values are defived from comparable seles and relevant indusiry market price reference guides. The most
significant Inputs into the valuation approach are the make, size, year of manufacture and condilion,

Pant and Equipment {leve} 2)

Plant and equipment assel valies are generally derived from comparable sales and relevant industey market price reference
guides. Where items of piant however are unique in design or there is insullicien! market avidence 10 support the valualion, the
vaiuatlon Is perfarmed using a deprecialed replacement cost approach (as described for buildings and houses ahove),

The most significant inputs inlo the market based valuation approach are the make, size, year of manufaclure and condition, \Where
assets are valued under a depreciated replacement cost approach significant inputs include the asset replacement cost, uselid
lives, paliem of sonsumption and assel conddien.

No flems of majer plant and equipment were valied using depreciated replacement costinthe curent year.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

11 Preperty, Plont and Equipment
Road and Water Infrastructura Nelwork (leve! 3)

Gourncil calegerises its road infrastructure info sealed and unsealed roads, which are managed in segmenls of 06 fonger than JKm.
Aliroad segments are componantised iplo formatien, pavement and seal {where applicable), and furlher into short and long-lived
subcompanents. [ralnage assels are segmented and componentised into pils, pipes, channels and floodways. Water and
sewerage mains are segmented and componenlised into standard and rising malas, and further into short and long-lived
subcomponents.

Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil lype, climale and topography are consistent across each segment. Councit
also assumes a segment is designed and consiructed to the same standard and uses a conslzlent amount of labour and malerials,

All road and waler infrastruciure nelwork asgets are valued using a deprecialed reptacement cost appreach. Gross replacemant
costs are eslimated through multiplying materials and labour unit prices (per measurement of araafiength) determinad by reference
te marke! data for recent projects, costing guides such as Rawdinson's (Ausiralian Construction Handbook) and benchmark data
from similar councils, by volumes ascertained wilh reference 10 councl minimum assel finear and area specifications.,

In ¢etermining the level of accumulated deprecialion assets are disaggragated into significant parte which exhibil different patterns
of censumptlion or usefu! lives. Allowances are made for the Lypical asse! lifecycle and renewal lreatments of each companent, the
patlern of consumplion of the asset's fulure economic benefil and the condition of the assel, Condilion is sssessed by taking into
account bothy physical characterislics as well as holistic factars such as fanclionality, capacity, viilisalior and chsclescence.

An identical condillon rating scale as provided above in refation to buidings and houses is used for infrasiructure assels In erder (o
assess the remaining service polential.

The meost significant Inputs inte the valuation approach are construction cost unit rales (per square metre), paltern of consumpiion,
asset condition, and the indexalion rate appiiedin the current period deskiop valuation update,

Accumulated depreciation

In determinig tolai useful life, remalning life, and accumuiated depreciation, assels were generally subject 1a an inspection o an
assessment to determine remaining useful life. Where sile Inspection were conducted (i.e. acfiva assets), the assets were allocated
a condition assessment, which was used to estimale remaining useful life.
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Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 30 June 2020
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13

4

2020 2019
Note $ $
Trade and other payables
Current
Crecilors and accruals 258,315 840,070
Annual leave 324,592 331,098
Reveaue in advance 116,370 110,316
699,277 1,281,484
Non-current
Ravenue in advance 603,000 600,000
603,060 §00,000
Provisions
Current
Long service leave 209,722 257,618
208,722 257,618
Non-current
Refuse restoration 2,401,264 2,325,679
Long sesvice leave 149,262 114,459
2,550,526 2,440,138
Details of movements in provisions:
Long service leave
Balance st beginning of financizl year 372,077 313,591
Long service leave entitlement arising 68,789 91.,7¢8
Long Service enlitlement paid {81,882) (33,312
Balance at end of financial year 358,984 372,077
Refuse restoration
Balanca at beginning of financlal year 2,325,67¢%
Increase in provision due to unwinding of discount 75,585 -
increase{decrease) in provision - 2,325,879
Balance at end of financial year 2,401,264 2,325,879

Landfll restoration provision

A provision is made for the cost of rehabilitation of assets and other future restoration costs where it is probable Council
will be liable, ar required, to incur costs on the cessation of use of these facilities.

The provision reprasents the present value of the anticipated future costs associaled with the closure of landfill sites in
accordance with environmental licence conditions. The caiculation of this provision requires assumplions such as
application of environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and enginearing cost estimates. These
uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currerdly provided, Because of the long-term
nature of the liability, the most significant uncerainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The
prevision recognised for langfiil sites is reviewad at least annually and updated based on the facts and circumstances
available at the time.

The present value of the tatal projected cost is $2,089,244 and is expected to be incurred between 2028 and 2042, The
figura excludes the unknown cost of rehabilitating landfitl cells on existing sites that are yet to be constructed ar used, and
post closure monitoring costs with an estimated present value of $312,020.

Asset revaivation surplus

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:

Balance at beginning of financial year 43,956,605 42,072,932
Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of period {o reflect a change in
current fair value:
Buildings 4,288,804 1,041,216
Houses (3,626,259) 1,068,614
Motor vehicles 83,504 42,079
Plant and equipment {417,498) 50,121
infrastructure {33,747) {319,357)
Net adiustment 224,804 1,883,673
Balance at end of financial year 44,251,409 43,956,605
Asset revajuation surplus analysis
The cinsing balance of the asset revaluation surplus comprises the following
asset categories;
Buiidings 22,227,233 17,938,429
Houses 12,073,828 15,700,087
Motor vehicles 524,432 440,928
Plant and equipment 147,200 564,698
Infrastructure 9,278,716 4,312,463
44,251 409 43,958,605
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l.eases

Council as Lesses

Council Leases a number of items of IT equipment, a number of the assats are considered [ow value and are therefore not
subjest to lease accounting. These itlems have lease term between two and five years.

During the year an amount of $9,170 (2019 $3,987) was recognised as an expense in the statement of Profit or Loss in
respect of operating leases,

Gounci] as Lessar

Council has teased commercial buildings including the Canteen and other office rental premises. Lease terms range {rom
one year to lhidy years with most leases being no more than five years. As Council has retained the risks and benefits of
ownership, the leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentat income is recognised on a straight-fine basis over the lease term.

The expected minimum fease receipls are as follows:

Between one and two years 73,607
Between two and three years 75,238
Between three and four years 49,229
Between four and five years 26,502
Five years and greater 506,000

730,476
Contingent abilities
Local Govarament Mutual
The Coundil is a member of the local government mutual ability self-insurance poot, LGM Queensland, In the event of te
pool being wound up of it is unable to meet its debts as they fall dus, the irust deed and rules provide that any
accumulated deficit will ba met by the individual pool members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total
pool contributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises.

As at 30 June 2020 the financial stalements reported an accumulated surpius and it is not anticipated any liability will
arise.

Local Government Workcare

The Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance scheme, L.ocal
Government Workcare. Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantee to cover
bad debts which may remain should the self insurance licence be cancelled and there was insuffcient funds avaiiable to
cover outstanding fiabflities. Only the Queensiand Government's workers compensation authority may call on any part of
the guarantee should the above circumstances arise, The Cauncil's maximum exposure to the bank guarantee is
$72,512.18

Superannuation

The Coundl contributes to the LGIAsuper Regienal Defined Benefits Fund(the scheme) , at the rate of 12% for each
permanent employee who is a defined benefit member, This rate is setin accorgance with the LGIAsuper trust deed and
may be varied on the advice of an actuary. The Regional Defined Benefils Fund is a complying superannuation scheme
for the purpose of the Commonwealin Superannuation (ndusiry (Supenvision) legistation and s also governed by the Lecal
Government Act 2009,

The scheme is & defined benefit plan, hewaver Council is not 2ble to account for it as a defined benefit plan in accordance
with AASR 118 because LGIAsuper is unable to account for its propartionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan
assets and cosls,

Any amount by which the scheme is over or under funded may affect future benefits and result in a change to the
contribution rale, but has not been recognisad as an asset or liability of the Council,

Technically Councit can be liable to the scheme for a portion of another lacal govarmnmenis' obligations should that (ocal
govemment be unable to meet thern, However the risk of this occurring is extremely low and in accosdance with the
L.GEAsUper trust deed changes to coundil’s chligations will only be made on the advice of an actuary.

The last completed actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 208, The actuary indicated that "At
the valuation dale of 1 July 2018, the net assels of the scheme exceedad the vested benefits and the scheme was in a
satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date.” The Council is not aware of anything that has happened since that
time that indicales the assets of the scheme are not sufficient to meet the vested benefits, as at the reporting date.

No changes have been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and there
are no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.

The nexd triennial actuaral review is not due until § July 2021,

The most significant risks that may result in LGIAsuper increasing the contribution rate, on the advice of the actuary, are:

Investment risk - The risk that the scheme's investment refuens wil be lower than assumed and additional contributions
are needed to fund the shortfall.

The impact of COVID on the fund has been assessed and there is considered 1o be no malerial impagt.
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Superannuation (continued)

2020
5

2019
$

Salary growth risk - The risk that wages or salaries will ise more rapidly than assumed, increasing vested benefits to be

fiznded.

Superannuation coniributions made (6 the Regional Defined Benefits
Fund

Contributions Council expesls to make to the Regional Defined Benefits
Fund for 2020-24

Reconciliation of net operating surplus for the year to net cash inflow
(outilow) from operating activities

Net operating result
Non-cash operating itemns:
Depreciation and amartisation
Revaluation adjustments
Change in fulure rehatilitation and restoration costs

Investing and development activities:
Net profit / loss on disposal of nen-current assets
Write off assets
Capital grants and contributions and sales

Changes in operating assets and [iabilities:
{Increase)/ decrease in receivables
{increase)/decrease in invenlory
{Increase)/decrease in biological asset
increase/{decraase} in payables
increasef{decreasea) in other provisions

Net cashinflow from operating activities
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514,255 423,767
2021
$
470,369
14,055,454 6,891,678
2,562,311 2,457,558
2,562,311 2,457,556
(34,472) (447,024)
1,224 521 .
{18,948,147) (11,134,847
(17.757,668) (11,581,877
139,018 64,502
(85,502) 19,306
241,472 15,567
{579,207) 129,855
62,492 2,384,165
332,128) 2,613,495
(1,362,332 980,760




Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

19 Changes in accounting policy

Burng the year ended 30 June 2028, the Councit has adopled AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with
Customers and AASB 1058 Income of NFF Entities using the maodified retrospaclive (cumulative catch-up)
method and therefore the comparative information for the year ended 30 June 2018 has not been restated
and continues to comply with AASB 111 Construction Cantracls, AASB 118 Revenue, AASE 1004

Contributions and associated Accounting Interpretations.

Al adiusiments on adoption of AASE 15 and AASB 1058 have been taken to retained earnings at 1 July
2019. The impacts of adopting these standards and asscciated transition disclosures ara provide below:

Opening contract balances on
transition at 1 July 2018

Balance at 1 July 2018
Contract assets $
- Under AASB 15 -
- Under AASB 1058

309,768

300,763

Balance at 1 July 2019
Contract liabilities 5
- Under AASB 15 .

- Under AASE 1058 5,292,298
5,292,208

et adjustment to Retalnad

Earnings 4,902,530

Stalement of financial position at

30 June 2020
Carrying amount per Adjustments Carrying amount if
Statement of Financial DriCr previous standards had
Position been applied
BbriCr
$ § $

Contract assets 558,687 {559,687} -
Contract liabilities-current (4,984,510) 4,984,510 -
Retained earnings (98,041,601) (5,540,237} (103,581,838}

{102,466,424) {1,115,414) (103,581,838}
Statement of Comprehensive
income at 30 June 2020

Balance per Statement  Adjustments Carrying amount if
of Comprehensive DritCr} previous standards had
Income fieen applied
BriCr)
$ $ $
Revenue-Gperating Grants 3,237,214 30,000 3,267,214
Fees and charges - - .
Revenue-Capital 16,721,136 (587,707) 16,133,428
19,958,349 (557,707} 19,400,642

The adjustments above relate 1o the recognition of coniract assets and contract liabilities for revenue streams
where the revenue is recogrised over time rather than on receipt of funding under AASB 1004. The adoption
of AASE 15 and AASB 1058 has not caused a material change lo the Statement of Cash Flows for the year

ended 30 June 2020,

20 Events after the reporting period

There were ne matertal adjusting evenls after the balance date.
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Financial instruments

Cherbaurg Aboriginal Shire Council's activities axpose it to a variety of financial risks including interest rate
risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk.

Exposure to financial fisks is managed in accordance with Counci approved policies on financial risk
management. These policies focus on managing the volatility of financizl markets and seek to minimise
potential adverse effecls on the firancial performance of the Council,

Credit risk exposure

Credit sisk exposure refers to the situation where the Council may incur financial loss as a result of ancther
party to a financial instrument failing o discharge thelr obligations.

Council assesses the credit ¢isk before providing gouds or services and applies normal business credit
protection procedures to minimise the risk,

Investments in financial assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or other financial instilution
in Austratia. The Councll does not invest in derivatives or other high risk investiments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period represents the maximum exposure
te credit risk for the Council.

No collateral is held as security refating to the financial assets held by the Coundil.

Mo financial assets have had their terms renegotialed so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired,
and are stated at the carrying amounts as Indicated,

A Summary of Council's exposure (o credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

30-Jun-20
Total Credit-impaired Not-Credit Impaired
$ $ $

Current 285,134 3,043 262,091
Past due 31-60 days 594,154 127,976 466,179
Past 61.90 days 146,309 67,511 78,798
dore than 90 days 1,282,427 1,181,545 100,882
Total gross carrying amount 2,308,024 1,380,074 927,950
Loss allowance 1,380,074

Liguidity risk exposure

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the Council may encounter difficuity in meeting obligations
associated with financial Babilities that are seltled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Counci!
is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal ceurse of business.

The Council's approach (o managing liquidity is fo ensure | as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet ils liabilities when they are due , under both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incurring
unaccepiable losses of damage to the Counci's reputation.

Council's only recognised financial Habilities are trade payables as disciosed in note 12 which have
contractual maturity dates of 6 months or jess,

Impacts from the COVID-1S Pandemic

Due to the small size and nature of Councit’s operations, Council has assessed that there has been rie
material impact on its financial position as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Council has not been required to provide any concessions or relief to business however residents in
communily housing were provided with cne menth free rent at an estimated cost of $130,000. Additional costs
incurred of $180,000 have been absorbed into Council's normat operational budget pending possible
reimbursement from the Queensiand Government,

Impacts of COVID-19 on asset revaluations undertaken during the current year were assessed, howaver it
was determined that there was not a significant impact and Council's assets as prasented in the financial
slatement are at fair value,
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Transactions with related parties

{a} Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)
KMP include the Mayor, councillors, council's Chief Executive Officer and some executive management. The compensation pafd to KMP for

2019/20 comgrises;
2020 2019
8 3

Short-term employee benefils 865,682 912,857
Post-employment benefits 63,347 31,864
Long-term benefits 13,263 53,196
Termination bensfils 58,296 g
Total 1,000,588 997,917

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the annual report,

{b) Transactions with other related parties

Other refaled parlies include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlled or joinlly controlled by KMP or their close family members.
Close family members inciude a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse,

Details of transactions between councit and other related paies are disclosed below,

Details of Transaction i:ff;‘iir::{;::a ZD;O 25;9
Fees and charges charged to entities controlled by key management personnel (i 8,530 8,282
Employee expenses for close family membaers of key management personnel {0 223,383% 118,234
E;J;ch:ﬁsl of maierals and services from entities controiled by key management () 8,507 162

{f) Fees charged by Counciito organisations where KMP are members of the crganisation's condroliing body are within

Council's nomal tezns and conditions,

(i) Councif employs 107 full time equivalent staff. Only 3 employees are close family members of KM, All close family
members of KMP were employed through an arm's length process. They are pald In accordance with the relevant industrial
award for the job they perform and Councif's employmen! agreements.

(i) Purchases by Council from crganisations where KMP are members of the organisation’s controlling bedy and are within

normal cemmercial terms and conditions.

{c) Qutstanding bajances

The following baiances are outstanding at the end of the reporing period in relaticn to transactions with related parties:

Year ended 30 June 2020

Housing rent owed | Amounts owed
Receivables by key management by entities
personnel controlled hy key
management

persennel
Current 30 $0
Past due 31-60 days 53,100 50
Past due 61-80 days 52,500 50
More than 90 days overdue 536,214 50
Total Owing $41,814 50
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23 Transactions with related parties (continued)

Year ended 30 June 3819

Housing rent owed | Amounts owed
Receivables by key management by entities
personne] controlled by key
management

parsonnel
Current $1,675 30
Past due 31-60 days 51,213 30
asi due 61.90 days $1,200 $0
More than 90 days overdue 518,527 $0
Total Owing $22,615 $0

(d) Loans and guarantees toffrom refated parties

Council dees nel make loans fo or receive foans from related parties, No guaraniees heve been provided.

(e} Commitinents to/from other related parties

Council does nol have commitments toffrom refated parties.

ff} Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Mosi of the entities and people that are related parlies cf council live and operate within the Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Councit area. Therefore, on
a regular basis ordinary citizen transactions oceur between Counclt and #s related parties, Some examples include housing renlal, joinery sales,
building maintenance work and dog registeation.

Councit has sot included these types of transactios in its disclosure, where ihey are made on the same terms and conditions available to the general
pubtic.
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Wanagement Cerfificate
For the year ended 30 June 2020

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 178 and 177 of the Local Government
Reguiation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we cartify that:
{i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 for the establishment

and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

{ii} the general purpose financiat slalements, as set out on pages 3 to 28, present a true and fair view, in accordance with Austratian
Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financiat pesition at the end of the year.

Bl doin

Mayor 0 Chief Executive Cfficer
Elvie Sandow Chatur Zala
Date: 13/10/2020 Date: 13102020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council (the
council).

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2020, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and the Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity’s annual report.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Cherbourg Aboriginal
Shire Council's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 was the current year financial
sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.
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My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations of the council.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2020:

a)
b)

| received all the information and explanations | required.

In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

%}Wl’) P 13 October 2020

Sri Narasimhan Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane



Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council
Gumrent-year Financial Sustalnability Statement For the year ended 33 June 2020

Measures of Floancial Suslainability Haowthe measureis calculated Achual Targot
Operaling surplus ralio Net resuit (exciuding capital ilems) divided 434 ﬂch'm”n &%
by tota! operating revenue (excluding capilat ud 18%
items)
Asset suslainability ralie Capital expendifure on e replacement of 171% greater thap

infrastnicture assels (renewals) divided by 0t

infrastructure depreciation expense,

Net financial liabilities ratlo Totat figbllifes less crrent nssels divided by s nD!sle-':i'ul
total cperaling revenue {excluding capital (han &0%
lems)

Basis of Preparation

The current year financial suslainabliity slatement is a special purpose stalement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Govemmen!
Regulation 2012 and the Firancial Management {Susteinabiily) Guideline 2013, The amounts used {o calculate the three reporied measures are prepared
on an accruat basis and are drawn from the Council's audited general purposs fnancial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Cortiflcate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2020
This eurrentyear linaneial sustainabilily statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Govemment Regufation 2012 (the ragulation),

In accordance wilh Sectlon 21 2(5) of he Reguialion we cerlify that this curmrent-year financial sustainabllity slatement has been accurately calculated,

B amdon

Haybr Chisf Exezutive Dificer
Eld Sidndow Chalur Zata

Daty 4131102020 Dala 1311072020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors of Cherbourg Aboriginal Shire Council

Report on the current year financial sustainability statement

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Cherbourg
Aboriginal Shire Council (the council) for the year ended 30 June 2020 comprising the

statement, explanatory notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the
Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in
all material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Cherbourg
Aboriginal Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial
sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to the Basis of Preparation which describes the basis of accounting. The
current year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the
council’'s reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result,
the statement may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

Other information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity’s annual report.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Cherbourg Aboriginal
Shire Council’'s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 was the general purpose
financial statements and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.
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My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a
separate opinion on the general purpose financial report.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the current year financial sustainability
statement

The councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012.
The councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the councillors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is
accurately calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance
of the reported ratios, nor on the council’s future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

13 October 2020

Sri Narasimhan Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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